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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in
such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and
other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible
to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there
will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility
for the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents
of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquires, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading, (2) there are no other matters the omission of which
would make any statement in this report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at
after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Dear Shareholders,

I’m pleased to report the strategic progress that Venturepharm
Laboratories made in 2008 and the outlook of 2009. 2008
was an exceptionally challenging year for the Company. Many
financial, regulatory and industrial environment changes have
temporary impact on the Company’s performance. Though
we have never run into such challenges, we also have never
been so confident of our future because the continue growth
of the China healthcare industry and the global economic
downturn provide great opportunities for the Company to
capitalize on the increasing international outsourcing. We
continue to innovate and adapt to the changes, and strategically
position the Company as an Asian based life science leader in
China, with a world-class most affordable full service plus
model, covering discovery, preclinical and clinical study,
pharmaceutical development services, compound partnering

and royalty sharing.
2008 HIGHLIGHTS

Though this is the first year that the Company reports negative
financial results in one of the toughest year for the healthcare

industry in China, we still have accomplished a lot:

e We maintain to be China’s No. 1 in new drug application
and in clinical trials study in terms of the numbers of
ongoing trials studies which drive our future growth. We
have made 30 new applications for clinical trials and

manufacturing approval; and

e We also the No 1 by the numbers of approval of clinical trials
and manufacturing certificates, 18 and 24 respectively.

e We are proud of completing one of the largest world-class

drug discovery center in China.
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STRATEGIC AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

The pharmaceutical industry is undergoing dramatic change.
China is expected to become one of the world’s top healthcare
markets by as early as 2010. By 2020, Shanghai area will be
No. 1 in the world for the number of scientists engaged in
commercial drug discovery research, and Chinese patent office
will be No. 1 in the number of patents granted, A majority of the
top 20 pharmas in the world will have R&D centers in Shanghai.
Shanghai great area will have as many biotech companies as
San Diego and more new drugs launched than Boston.

Great opportunities create great business. Traditional models
are no longer enough. To capture the opportunities, the
Company has made strategic progress towards our vision to
be one of the most affordable word-class fully-integrated R&D
service giant. As a market leader in clinical trial study and
pharmaceutical development service in China, the Company
made strategic move by acquiring a NSDAQ listed drug
discovery service company Commonwealth Biotechnologies
Inc. in 2008. It was the first acquisition of a NASDAQ biotech

company by a Chinese company.

The Company had also made great progress in setting up
various strategic platforms worldwide to provide most affordable
fully-integrated world-class R&D services. Commitment to
R&D is critical to the Company’s long-term success in the

pharmaceutical industry.
1. Discovery science services

The Company has four worldwide business units to provide

discovery science services:
e VPDiscovery (formerly Tripos Discovery): for drug

discovery chemistry and compounds;

e Mimotopes (Australia): for peptide Chemistry drug

discovery;
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e CBI Services (US): for core biology and biochemistry

drug discovery;

e Fairfax Central Labs (US): for genetic testing and
identification and clinical central lab.

Tripos and Mimotopes are subsidiaries of Commonwealth
Biotechnologies Inc. They are widely respected global
leaders in small molecule drug discovery and peptide
drug discovery respectively. To assist their expansion into
China to provide high quality and cost-competitive R&D
services, Venturepharm is establishing a 200,000 square
feet drug development innovation complex for Tripos’
operation relocation to China and a 70,000 square feet
drug discovery centre for Mimotopes’ China operation.

Preclinical & clinical services

To expand the Company’s therapeutic width and provide
scale benefits, we continue to seek for pharmaceutical asset
acquisition opportunities for new segments. We expect our
clients will gradually embrace more full service outsourcing,
and our mission is to deliver reliable value-added integrated

project management services.

VPS-Preclinical is building a three-phase 500,000 square
feet lab, which probably is one of the largest in Asia. The
new facilitate will provide preclinical animal testing full
service in China, including discovery, toxicology, pathology
and animal models of Disease services.

VPS is a No.1 clinical services organization in China that
provides global clinical, preclinical and regulatory affair
services. It is a leader in oncology, hepatitis, vaccine,
CNS, cardiovascular, hematology, diabetes, allergy and

immunology.
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The Company heavily invests in establishing clinical
research operation units to drive the future growth of the
Company:

e VPS phase | research center;

e VPSmart post-approval drug clinical research
institute;

e SAS-VP data management institute;

e VP-Porsche RA center;

e Vacc-VP clinical research institute;

e OHH-VP oncology, HIV and hepatitis diseases clinical

institute;

e (CNS-VP clinical research instate;

e CNSVP-Pain management;

e (CV-VP cardio clinical institute;

e DermNova dermatology;

e TCM-VP clinical research institute.

Pharmaceutical development services

Product royalty and compound partnership will be one
of the Company’s drivers for revenue growth. We plan
to invest more in building pharmaceutical development
services capabilities and continue to add new products to
our product pipelines through pharmaceutical development
service (PDS). This will not only help achieve royalty revenue
growth, but also further improve our fully integrated services

capabilities to provide low-cost high quality drugs.

RABRAREE R BRKATRBETT
HEMARARARNEREHRTEAN ¢
o BERHIRKMEDL

o BRIFRARIENHERATE RBMHEE

o RHB%(Vacc-VP)as KA BT

o ZREZ(OHH-VP)EIE - % & IF £
DARERRITER

o =B & 2(CNSVP)fE 1o 1 4 58 A & K #

o RH1EZ /0B (CV-VP)IE A R IRt 78

o RBEBENERFEMIABRKIIL ;

o EERERAHEAEIRIFTCM-VP o

BB AR
ERENM e mfEaERRZ A RKA
BENEEE S - RGBS BELEYHT E

AR 75 5% F B8 R R 75 BE ) N 5 ) 38 N EE m AR
EmEREEZ - ETEREREENE
£ AEbERE - FERMEEORY
B MAEEREXRASEENER -



HERBEXARAT —FE/NFFH

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFHFEHE

4. API development services

The Company continues to build up capabilities for API
development services and custom synthesis and to scale
up service delivery.

AN EXCITING FUTURE

Looking ahead, we remain confident that we will be at the
forefront in capitalizing upon the global outsourcing opportunity
as it unfolds. The Chinese pharmaceutical industry is
experiencing consolidation amongst key players, a trend which
is expected to gain momentum in the future. While striving
unceasingly to exercise strong leadership in the industry in
China, we remain firmly committed to unlocking shareholder
value through the delivery of high quality service solutions.

Based on our strong fundamentals of innovation,
entrepreneurship and aggressive marketing skills, we
are determined to capitalize upon the global outsourcing
opportunities and remain committed to enhancing shareholder
value, as we actively pursue our strategy of growth through both
organic and inorganic means. To complement our expansion
strategy, we are also looking to further strengthen our service
delivery through acquisition.

In summary, we have aggressive and exciting plans for 2009,
and once again we intend to deliver on our goals. In the year
ahead, we expect to meet the following milestones:

1. Key growth driver 1 of 2009: set up a fully integrated
high quality most affordable drug discovery global service
division.

VPDiscovery Ltd and Mimotopes China Ltd will be the
two engines to drive the growth of this sector.
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2. Key growth driver 2 of 2009: further improve preclinical and
clinical trial studies capabilities

We aim at turning a No. 1 VPS CRO in domestic market
to a global specialty pharma and Biotech company, by
setting up sales and marketing offices in North America and
Europe, and expanding through global alliance and M&A of
global CRO companies.

3. Key growth driver 3 for 2009: royalty and compound
partnership model

The Company will continue the co-finance, co-development
and co-marketing strategy and engage in strategic licensing
of therapeutic compound pipelines, and marketing of
projects to China, an emerging global top five market.

In closing, Venturepharm has a committed group of employees
who are bright, enthusiastic and hard-working. | would like
to thank the management and all of our employees for
their dedication and commitment. On behalf of everyone at
Venturepharm, we extend our sincerest appreciation to our
shareholders for their continuing repose of confidence in the
Company. We will deliver improved value in 2009 and the years
to come. We look forward to your ongoing support and to
sharing this dynamic growth phase of our journey with you.

By order of the Board
William Xia Guo

Chairman

25 March, 2009
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RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2008, consolidated turnover
amounted to RMB39,186,000, representing an increase of
1.18% compared to RMB38,729,000 of last year, of which,
approximately RMB15,680,000 was derived from technology
transfer and contracted pharmaceutical development
services, approximately RMB19,743,000 from contracted
pharmaceutical development services and clinical research
services not associated with technology transferred by the
Group, and approximately RMB2,749,000 from franchise

commercialisation.

In terms of revenue structure, the import registration and
the following clinical services achieved the biggest growth,
representing more than 19 times compared with that of
2007. The revenue of franchise commercialisation achieved
100% increase, reflecting the Group’s consideration for long
term benefit and the strategic disposition of enforcing the
project transfer of franchise commercialisation and developing
international business. Although the revenue of CRS reaches
only 79% of the total revenue, it is decreased by 13% compared
with that of last year. The main reason is that the year of
2008 is the first year for the implementation of the newly
revised Provisions for Drug Registration. For the purpose
of fulfilling the new Provisions and put the legislation spirit
and requirement into consolidated practice, State Food and
Drug Administration (SFDA) issued a series of corresponding
documents such as Complementary Regulation on Registration
of Chinese Medicine, Regulation on On-site Examination of
Drug Registration and Measures on Administration of Special
Examination and Approval of Registration of New Drugs and
several technique guidance principles for drug research, raising
the requirement of drug registration application and further
regulating the review and approval procedure of registration.
For the reason that State Food and Drug Administration (SFDA)
focused on handling with approximately 25,000 application
projects which were overstocked in drug reviewing process,
the normal timeline for reviewing could not be guaranteed.
This led a dramatic decrease in number of issued Clinical
Study Permits (CSPs). As much as 67% of the projects were
rejected. As a result, both the number and the total fee of new
contracts decreased.
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On the other hand, since the second half year of 2008,
the world economy has got dramatic degeneration, and
the domestic economy is facing with severe difficulties and
challenges. Following the change of macro economic situation,
the structural adjustment of food and drug industry may be
accelerated and the intensiveness and management form of the
industry will also have new changes. For the more difficulties
on the manufacturing and operation, some enterprises may
perform the manufacturing and operation against the standards
and regulations, challenging the bottom line of safety, which
will be requested to stop manufacturing by the state. Some
enterprises may generate conflict in the process of restructuring,
merger and acquisition, which will affect on the manufacturing,
operation and capital management. Therefore, with a high
sense of responsibility to the shareholders, the Group prepared
the reduced value for receivable account for a vast scale, thus
the shareholders have lost as much as RMB16,354,000.

The Group’s overall gross profit margin was 39.25% for the year
under review, decrease 19.95% than last year which is 59.2%.
The principal reason is due to our adjustment on the contract
price in order to keep our business on an ongoing basis in
the financial crisis circumstance. General and administrative
expenses amounted to RMB47,544,000 representing an
increase of 161% compared to RMB18,165,000 in 2007, due
to the added expenses for law work in the process of acquiring
CBI and the expansion of the Group. Finance costs amounted
to RMB7,968,000 representing an increase of 49% compared
to RMB5,338,500 in 2007, due to interests of CB and exchange

loss of foreign currency.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING RATIO

During the year, the Group maintained a sound financial position
and prudent liquidity risk management, and had sufficient cash
to meet the requirements of its business development. As at 31
December 2008, the Group had current assets of approximately
RMB157,316,000, among which RMB6,711,000 was cash.
The Group had no short-term bank liabilities and maintained
sufficient cash and a strong and sound financial position.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

During the period under review, the Group’s transactions were
substantially denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”). In view of
the RMB appreciation trend, the Group engaged in risk-free
value-added banking activities in due course and transferred its
USD-denominated businesses to RMB-denominated businesses
according to the relevant business scale. The Group closely
monitors its foreign currency risk from time to time and will use

appropriate hedgings where necessary.
BUSINESS REVIEW

Aiming at long-term development and based on its business
transformation strategy of transforming from a leading
technology transfer supplier to an enterprise integrating
pharmaceutical development and products commercialisation,
the Group continued to expand its product lines and accelerate
the establishment of the marketing network so as to rapidly
capture its market share. The Group has managed to establish
a comprehensive value-added business mode for value chains
such as API, preparation and analysis technology, pre-clinical
research, clinical trial, regulatory affair (RA) service and franchise
commercialisation, and further explored the service capacity of
small molecular research and biologic product research through
the acquisition of CBI, thereby enhancing the profitability and
risk resistance capability of the Company, and enabling the

Company to secure long-term stable profitability in future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Sales and Marketing

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group has signed
15 PDS contracts with contract value of RMB16,865,000
and 24 VPS contracts with contract value of approximately
RMB14,501,000, aggregating to RMB31,366,000 in total. A
decrease of 32.82% in the number of contracts and a decrease
of 60% in the total contract value was recorded compared
to that of the corresponding period last year. However, the
international business has achieved an encouraging growth.
Nine international contracts covering pharmaceutical R&D
outsourcing, clinical services, etc. were signed. Moreover, the
cooperation discussion with big pharmaceutical enterprises
such as Roche, Bayer, Merck, etc. has made a great
breakthrough.

The Group continued its investment in the enhancement of
marketing capability and the expansion of market network, and
introduced new technologies in the domestic market under the
brand of Venturepharm while striving to establish and expand
overseas markets under the brand of VPS-CRO. During the
period, the Group not only focused on business expansion,
but also paid more attention to the enhancement of brand
value and the improvement of professional capability, aiming
at becoming a comprehensive and reliable technology and
service provider with the most prestigious brand and leading
technologies.
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Clinical Research Service (CRS)

Taken clinical study as the prime focus, the Group has
established the most integrated service in the country, which
provides a series of services ranging from phase | clinical
and bioequivalence studies, phase lI-lll clinical studies, and
phase |V post-marketing clinical study, to data management
and medical statistics, and medical administration related
service. Meanwhile, the Group makes a great efforts to improve
the professional capability involving the above mentioned
services and has preliminarily established 12 professional
research institutions including Venturepharm-CBI phase |
clinical research center, VPS-mart phase IV clinical research
and academic promotion center, SAS-Venturepharm data
management and medical statistics center, VP-Porsche RA
service center, OHH-VP Pacific-Asia clinical research institution
for oncology, AIDS and hepatitis, CNSVP Psychoneurologic
Pacific-Asia clinical research institution, CV-VP Cardiovascular
Pacific-Asia clinical research center, DermNova Pacific-Asia
clinical research institution for dermatosis and gynecologic
disease and TCM-VP clinical research center for natural drug
and traditional Chinese medicine, etc.

In the meantime, the Group has built a nation-wide network
with bases in Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou and offices
in over 30 provincial capital cities for clinical monitoring and
academic promotion, covering over 80% hospitals which have
been authorised to conduct clinical research. The Group has
the capacity of operating more than 60 phase | and BE projects
each year and conducting 50 phase IlI-lll clinical projects
simultaneously. Meanwhile, the Group is able to carry out 4
phase IV clinical trials with large sample size (2000 subjects) at
the same period. In addition, the import drug registration and

international clinical services have made a great progress.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Pre-clinical service

The Group is establishing Venturepharm Asia CMC Drug
Evaluation Center, a GLP standardised pre-clinical laboratory
with a total area of 50,000 m2, which will become the Asia’s
largest pre-clinical laboratory after its construction. The center
to be completed, currently under construction, will adopt the
international standard in the aspects of construction designing,
process distribution, facility selection and installation, staff level
and system constitution. The center is planned to undertake
30% of R&D outsourcing contracts from CBI, which not
only satisfies the needs of high-end clients from Europe and
America, but also provide services to medium and small sized
enterprises from domestic and abroad. The center mainly
includes the platforms as Drug Discovery Platform, Toxicology

Platform, Pathology Platform and Animal Model Platform.

In accordance with the statistics from Antisoma in US, 1/3 of the
world’s present big pharmas have their business outsourced.
This figure would increase into 47% in 2008. On the other
hand, the marketing analysis indicates that the world market
of R&D contract outsourcing develops by an average increase
of 16.3% each year. Data show that China’s pharmaceutical
R&D outsourcing market in 2008 has risen to USD260 million,
representing over 10 times’ increase compared with the market
of USD25 million in 2005. This figure is predicted to be
increased to USD430 million in 2010. Some people state
that China has grown over India into the prior option for R&D
outsourcing in Asia. In the particular time with the occurrence
of economic crisis, big pharmas will have more of their projects
outsourced into China. Venturepharm’s strong capability of
pre-clinical and clinical service precisely corresponds to this
historical opportunity and will realise the business development

by leaps and bounds.
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Pharmaceutical Development Service (PDS)

The Group’s portfolio for technology R&D and transfer covers
13 major and high growth therapeutic areas such as endocrine,
CNS, cardiovascular disease, dermatosis, cancer, AIDS, allergy
and antibiotics. Several of its products are introduced to the
domestic market for the first time and are exclusive products.
Furthermore, several advanced technology platforms have been
established for drug synthesis, pharmaceutical analysis and
drug delivery systems.

Along with a reinforced investment, the Group’s R&D strength
continues to maintain a leading position in the industry. The
Group has 248 on-going projects, among which, 59 were
initiated in 2008 and a total of 30 products were applied for
clinical trials and production. Under the circumstance of such
strict and delayed review by State Food and Drug Administration
(SFDA), the Group still obtained 18 new Clinical Study Permits
(CSPs) and 23 Manufacturing Permits (MPs), maintaining the
No.1 position in China. For the year ended 31 December 2008,
the total number of CSPs obtained by the Group accumulated
to 299 and the total number of MPs accumulated to 119.

VP-Discovery

Venturepharm Asia Innovation Center is the research center of
CBI in China, with an area of 20,000 m2. It utilizes the most
advanced facilities and equipment to provide the research
services as small molecular designing, high throughput
chemistry, peptide synthesis and biologic products services
such as DNA testing. The center has carried out trials up to

now.
API

Aside from technologic transfer projects, the business of APl is
developing in a comprehensive way. Despite that API’s sales
revenue accounts for only 1.2% of the total revenue, it is able to
provide integrated services including custom synthesis, APl and
intermediate marketing and API related services. It is believed
that API business could realise a dramatic growth in 2009.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Patents

The Group has always placed great emphasis on the protection
of intellectual property rights. Since its incorporation and up
to 31 December 2008, the Group has submitted over 232

patents.
PROSPECTS

To capitalise on the opportunity of the increased demand of
global R&D outsourcing market, the company has made best
efforts to improve its service capacities and performance in R&D
outsourcing service by providing fully integrated pharmaceutical
services that include PDS (Pharmaceutical Development
Service), API (Active Pharmaceutical Ingredient), CRS (Contract
Research Service), RAS (Regulatory Affairs Service), CMS
(Contract Manufacturing Service) and CSS (Contract Sales
Service). In the meantime, the Group believes that as the
government further standardises and implements its supervision,
the market environment will become more favourable to the
Group given its competitive edge. The economic crisis, to the
enterprises like Venturepharm, is undoubtedly an opportunity
rather than a challenge. Meanwhile, the investment from
Chinese government into the scientific research of biologic and
pharmaceutical technology, with the investment of RMB6.6
billion into major new drug research included, will stimulate
greatly to the R&D service market. The upcoming new booming
age of the pharmaceutical industry will not only present the
Group with rare and precious business opportunities, but also
considerable return for the shareholders.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has not been any change to the capital structure of the
Company since that date.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The Company invested its surplus fund through its principal bank
in investment market funds, which was RMB46,684,000.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

Within the year of 2008, Venturepharm Lab. Ltd. successfully
acquired 43.65% of the issued and outstanding shares of
Commonwealth Biotechnologies Inc. (CBI), a NASDAQ listed
company and became the largest shareholder of CBI. By
integrating the complementary advantages of the two sides,
the two companies set up the Venturepharm Asia Innovation
Center, which aims to become a global innovative research
service foundation with the largest scale and most efficiency
in Asia.

EMPLOYEES

The Group’s remuneration policy is basically determined by
the performance of individual employees. In addition to salaries
and bonuses, employee benefits included medical and pension
contributions and share options schemes.

APPROPRIATION

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2008 and propose that the
profit for the year be retained.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audit committee of the Board has reviewed the consolidated
financial statements for the year, including the accounting
principles and accounting standards adopted by the Company,
and discussed matters relating to auditing, internal controls a
financial reporting.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. William Xia GUO, is the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer,
Managing Director and Joint Chief Technology Officer of the
Group. Mr. Guo is responsible for strategic planning and
development, overall management and R&D activities of the
Group. Mr. Guo obtained with a Master degree in science
from University of Toronto in March 1997. Mr. Guo has
also completed various approved courses for the degree of
Master of Business Administration in the Heriot-Watt University.
Before establishing the Group in December 1998, Mr. Guo
had worked for two pharmaceutical companies in Canada,
namely Ortho-McNeil Inc. and Novopharm Limited, both are
pharmaceutical companies in Canada as research scientist
and process development manager, respectively. Mr. Guo has
approximately 10 years experience in research, pharmaceutical
development and management in the pharmaceutical
industry. Mr. Guo is a member of the American Association
of Pharmaceutical Scientists and the National Pharmaceutical

Sciences Group Inc.

Dr. Maria Xue Mei SONG, is an executive Director. Dr. Song is
responsible for Clinical Research (R&D) and also the head of the
Human Resources Management Department of the Group. Dr.
Song graduated from China Concord Medical University with a
Doctorate degree in clinical medicine in July 1995. She is also
a Registered Pharmacist in the PRC. Prior to joining the Group
in February 2000, Ms. Song had served as general manager of
Beijing Tiancifu Biopharmaceutical Co. Ltd.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. FENG Tao, is nominated as a non-executive Director by C
Tech Fund. Mr. Feng obtained a Master degree in Science from
the Department of Statistics and Applied Probability from the
University of Alberta in June 1992. Mr. Feng has been serving
as the Vice President Officer of The Foundation of Science and
Technology for Development of the State Planning Committee,
State Economic and Trade Commission of the PRC and China
Science Academy since September 1999. He was appointed
as non-executive Director in August 2002.

Mr. WU Xin, is a non-executive Director nominated by C Tech
Fund. Mr. Wu is a vice-president of New Margin. Mr. Wu
obtained his Master of Science degree from Stanford University
in Engineering-Economic Systems in 1994 and a Bachelor
of Science degree in Electrical Engineering from University
of lllinois in May 1998. Prior to joining New Margin, Mr. Wu
worked in Chase Capital Partners, an investment firm, and at
Robertson Stephens & Company, an investment firm based in
San Francisco. He was appointed as non-executive Director
in August 2002.

Dr. Nathan Xin ZHANG, is a non-executive Director. Dr. Zhang
is the former chief executive officer of Chipscreen Biosciences
Ltd., a leading Chinese biotech company specialized in
innovated cancer, diabetes, and osteoporosis drug discovery.
Dr. Zhang had worked with KPMG LLP and Credit Suisse
First Boston. Dr. Zhang holds an M.D. from Tianjin Medical
University, Ph. D from University of Pennsylvania, and an MBA
from the University of Chicago, USA.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WANG Hong Bo, is an independent non-executive Director
and is the chairman of the audit committee. He is a member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.Wang
graduated from Nan Kai University with a master degree. Mr.
Wang is presently a finance manager of TCL Group Limited.
Mr. Wang has over 10 years of experience in auditing. He was
appointed as independent non-executive Director in September
2004.

Mr. Paul CONTOMICHALQOS, is an independent non-executive
Director. He was awarded an MBA from the Columbia University
in May 1985. Mr. Contomichalos had worked for Bristol-Myers
Squibb (BMS). His first position in China was to start up the
consumer over-the-counter business of Bristol-Myers Squibb
in 1994. He became Chairman and President of Bristol-Myers
Squibb China from 1997 to 2000. Prior to working in China,
Mr. Contomichalos held various key consumer marketing and
business development positions with Bristol-Myers Squibb in
the USA and Canada and has about18 years of experience
in this field. He was appointed as independent non-executive
Director in August 2002.

Mr. WU Ming Yu, is an independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Wu is a member of the education committee of the China
(Hainan) Reform Development Research Institute, a member
of Standing Committee of China Association of Science and
Technology; President of Chinese Society of Technology
Economics; Honorary President of China Society of Science
and Science Technology Policy Research and Vice-President
of China Society of Land Economics Research. Mr. Wu has
held the post of Vice Minister of the Development Research
Center of the State Council, Vice Minister of the State Science
and Technology Commission; President of China Technology
Economic Research Institute; Vice President of China Society
of Science and Science Technology Policy; Economist of
Economy Research Institute of the State Council and President
of Asia-Pacific Research Institute. He was appointed as
independent non-executive Director in August 2002.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Group’s senior management comprises the following
employees:

Mr. George Fei PENG, is the Vice President of the Group. Mr.
Peng holds a Master of Finance and Investment degree from
Durham University (UK). He has over ten years of experience
in investment management in US, UK and China. Before
joining the Group, he was a co-founding partner of Il Global
Consulting.

Dr. Tom Tuo JIN, is the Joint Chief Technology Officer. Dr. Jin
holds M.D. from University of Toronto and Ph. D from Hokkaido
University. Dr. Jin engaged in education and pharmaceutical
R&D in Japan, USA Novartis and Canada for years. Dr. Jin
was a researcher with Aventis-Pasteur (USA), Supervisor of
Formulation Division with BioDelivery Science (USA), as well
as Associate Professor with Long Island University. Dr. Jin is
the dean of Sinican Institute. Dr. Jin published 25 articles in
periodical and applied for 10 patents. Dr. Jin is a member of
American Association of Pharmaceutical Scientists.

Dr. Tarun GUPTA, is the co-head of the Group’s Business
Development Department (International Division). He is also the
Chief Executive Officer of P.K. Pharmatech in India. Dr. Gupta
has obtained his degree of bachelor of medicine and bachelor of
surgery in December 1982. He worked with Lupin Laboratories
Limited of India before he joined the Group in December
2000 and was seconded to the exclusive marketing and
distribution agent in Hong Kong in 1996. He was responsible
for marketing and distributing of product of Lupin Group in the
Asia region. He has over ten years of experience in the field of
pharmaceutical industry.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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The Directors of the Company present their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates
are set out in notes 8 and 9, respectively, to the financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business

segments is set out in note 5 to the financial statements.
RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 52

of the annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2008.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group and the Company during the year are set out in note
6 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
17 to the financial statements.

ARFEFEMREZRARARMBLAR ([X&E
B BE_TEENFT_A=T—HLEFEZF
BHEMRERRAYBRE -

EFEREK

ARB/—EREZERAR - KRRARIZHB QA

RERE 2 EBEE DRI SN BRKRMES
K9 o

REBFARRIZERE O © SRPHRE
MIEES ©

EEBERDE

REBHEE - TETN\FE+_A=+—HItFEZ
EEHNANFRES2HGA WER ©
EETE@gnEEz—_ZE )/ \F+=-A=1+—AH1
FERE RS ©
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in note 18 to the financial
statements.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages
135 to 136.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report are:

Managing Director:

William Xia GUO

Executive Directors:

Maria Xuemei SONG

Non-executive Directors:

FENG Tao

WU Xin

Nathan Xin ZHANG

Independent Non-executive Directors:
WANG Hong Bo

Paul CONTOMICHALOS
WU Ming Yu

EA]
AEBRARRFERFANZSEFIBTHNIE
Hw&RMIFELI8 °

T FEMBEBE
AEERBERAEAVBRFEZXEREERARE
MESHNE135E1368 °

B=

FARBEAREAMLEARARBZETEES :

BEEAKE .

HBE

FHUTES

o
R
ESIA

BUFHTES :
TFAR

Paul CONTOMICHALOS
R
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In accordance with Articles 95 and 121 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, WU Xin, FENG Tao, Nathan Xin ZHANG,
WANG Hong Bo, Paul CONTOMICHALOS and WU Ming Yu

retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Apart from Nathan Xin ZHANG and WANG Hongbo, who do not
have a service contract, each of the Directors has entered into
a service contract with the Company for three years from 10
July 2003 (the “Listing Date”). Each of the Executive Directors
and Non-executive Directors was appointed as Director of
the Company respectively subject to termination in certain
circumstances as stipulated in the relevant service contracts,
if applicable.

On 11 July 2008, the service contract with each Director other
than Nathan Xin ZHANG and WANG Hong Bo, expired and be

renewed for one more year.

Save as disclosed above, no Directors proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment

of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

BEARRE) 2 A ERMBANFEISR1211E » RAR
BE ~ RIR ~ FALK ~ Paul CONTOMICHALOS X
REPEREHE EIRERET -

BRaR MR M EADR W EAT L IRBE AN - B]ITE
FEEARARFYE_ZZ=F+A+A ([LMH
B Bt RB=FZRBEEH - SRTEER
HRTEFRZERARAESTAXBRERH
REEH (EM) FTRZETERT FIARLE

RZZBZENFLRA+—B  BRRMEELIRI -
BEZEZRBENER  LEOH—F -

frEXHBEEN  RREERRBFAGEEE
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTEREST IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2008, the interests and short positions of
the Company’s Directors and chief executives in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”), which are
required (a) to notify the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have taken
(b) pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (c) pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules
were as follows:

under such provision of the SFO); or

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

(1) The Company

EEREETHRAERRG - HERDG
ISEE ek £

22 NEFE+ZA=+—H ' ' ARRIZEER

BRARARAREER (FxRE
B0 ([FHREEGRAL) EXVE) 2
f% $%§H§1ﬁ&ﬁ%f{ﬂ BB QBERBEZESFR
HEEPIEXVELET RESD FBME AR AR REHH
BMERZMABRAR ([HRA]) 2D RAR
(BREEEREEFABGRIIZEFEEEE
A REEZERIOKE) ¢ (b )*E%fo%f%&,ﬁﬂ
ﬂMﬁIJ%s&szﬂ;k BB NG P S SR M 2 R A
KB () BIBAIZEIR LT A $5.46%5.67
)’T L2 i MORBIAT ¢

\o

% \UHE

f

%Xr

RAEATRGREERD ZHFE
(1) AR AE]
Number of shares in

which interested
under physically

Number of shares in settled equity
which interested derivatives Approximate
(other than under BREBNLEE percentage
equity derivatives) RAGT4E  Total number of interest
Name Type of interest  Capacity BEEZZRAOEE IERERER of shares BN
#E &g ) (RASTE T ABRSN) ZBRAEE R 1P B
(Note 3)
(K#5E3)
William Xia GUO Personal Beneficial owner 9,110,377 8,244,000 17,354,377 4.68
i) f&A ERBAA
William Xia GUO Corporate Interest of a controlled 149,432,583 - 149,432,583 40.27
HE NG Corporation (Note 1)
REHEEES (1)
William Xia GUO Corporate Interest of a controlled
HE NG Corporation (Note 2) 15,966,073 - 15,966,073 4.30

SEHAEES (ME2)
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Note 1: The controlled corporation, Venturepharm Holdings Inc., is 47.63%
directly held by Mr. William Xia GUO and 44.94% held by Mr. William
Xia GUO through Winsland Agents Limited, his wholly and beneficially
owned company incorporated in British Virgin Islands.

Note 2: The controlled corporation, Bright Excel Assets Limited, is 100%
beneficially owned by Venturepharm Holdings Inc.

Note 3: Various interests of the Directors and chief executives pursuant to
physically settled equity derivatives are through share options granted
under the Pre-IPO share option scheme. Details of which are set forth

MEE1 © ZEHIAE Venturepharm Holdings Inc. A8 B A4 H
B FFB47.63%AHE LA K | 2F B %5 A 3% iBWinsland
Agents Limited (REBELZ A SFHMAKL - BHBEE
ZEERRE) FH44.94%H%

M52 : 523 #)5% EBright Excel Assets LimitedZ
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. B 25 A °

BB

EEREBTRABRENGEERANTETRART 2
S w AFEBIRE R AR S RATEERE S 8RR T
ZRBRAERE o BRI

B 7S

as follows:

Number of shares in which

interested under physically

settled equity derivatives as at

20 June 2003 and 31 December 2007

R-ZEE=FXA=-1+HRE

—2EN\Ft=A=+-H
Name RIEBYEERATETR Date of grant Exercise price
o FERRZRMEE HH B TEE
William Xia GUO 7,200,000 20-Jun-03 HK$0.32
FE —EE=F,A=+H 0.32/87C
William Xia GUO 360,000 2-Mar-05 HK$0.52
E —EERF=A-H 0.52/87C
William Xia GUO 360,000 14-Dec-05 HK$0.45
HE —EEZRE+ZA+IMA 0.4578 7T
William Xia GUO 324,000 10-Aug-06 HK$0.36
= —ETERFNATAH 0.367%8 7T

Options granted to Mr. William Xia GUO contain a vesting DBELEEBE 2 BIREAONTEBRR - &t -

schedule, pursuant to which may exercise up to 30% of the
underlying shares after 31 December 2003, up to another
30% of the underlying shares after 31 December 2004 and
the balance after 31 December 2005. The relevant options will
expire after ten years from the date of grant. Mr. William Xia
GUO has undertaken to the Stock Exchange that he will not
exercise their options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Options
Scheme within the first 12 months from the Listing Date.

FAR—EZ=F+_A=+—BERTETZR
B D30% BlE R_FTWOF+_-A
=+ —BRITETNZRBREKRD EH30%2 B
B RR-_ZFETEAF+ A=+ —HRITEHK
TR - ARBRESNELARRTFE
o SBEEA TS MR AT A - R BB AR
AEI2EAR  BTETERBREERAHEE
B AR M At B e 2 FEARAE -
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(2) A subsidiary of the Company — Beijjing Dezhong-Venture
Pharmaceutical Technology Development Company
Limited

@) FLRRIZHB LA — I RIERE 2 YR
FIRBR A A]

Capital Approximate

contribution on percentage of

a Sino-foreign interest of

co-operative shareholding in

joint venture joint venture

Name Type of interest Capacity R—RE R INE1E NEETERE

®E Tz Bl g4 REELERE ZEBHIEIL

William Xia GUO Corporate Interest of a controlled US$111,000 12.83
LE NS corporation (Note 1) 111,000% 7T

REhaEEs (1)

Note 1: The interest is held by Beijing Venturepharm Biotech Pharmaceutical
Technology Company Limited, a limited liability company
incorporated in the PRC, for which 99% of its shareholding is
beneficially held by Mr. William Xia GUO and 1% held by Dr. Maria
Xue-mei SONG.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, none
of the Directors and chief executive had any interests or
short positions in any securities of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which are required (a) to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO); or
(b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the rules 5.46 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Mz - BREBIERBE2ENBENRERDAFA © %
RAB—RATPEEMARLZERAT - H99%
BERFBELLEERRE 1% BREEE
THA ©

R EXFrRBEEN  RCEENF+ _A=1—
B EFRERTBABBRERARR]SHHETM
HEOEE (EERESRPEGIIEXVER) 2 &
»H o BARQBREES MPEERIEXVEET
K 5E85) #B A& AN~ B Ko Bk AZ B 2 AR AT 4 & SOR
B (BHRESFREZZRBEGRIZFHRXHE
R ASEBZREIXRR)  HOREBEFSF R
HA S R SR 36215 51 A Rx {5k B P st & Re it 2 (T a)
REIORR ¢ K(C)RIFBIFR EHRAIFES. 462
5.671k 2 ME 2 EIHESIORE °
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as it is known to any Directors, chief executives of the
Company, as at 31 December 2008, the interests and short
positions of persons in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed pursuant to Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required, pursuant
to section 336 of Part XV of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein were as follows:

FERR

BAAREFEEREBTRARMM  R=F
THETZAS+—A  ATALREARAZ
R 17 RARBIAR 19 b 25 A 8 T BRIRE 5
29 P EXVED B2 R E3H BRI B - LR
155 20 T ) SEXV D S5 386/ 5 A e
B ERAAR

Approximate
percentage of

interest
Name Capacity Number of shares EEBA
=18 54 R4GEB Bk
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. Beneficial owner 149,432,583 41.19
(Note 1) (Pff&E1) BEHEERA
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. Interest of controlled corporation 15,966,073 4.40
(Note 2) (FffzE2) Rt EEE R
Bright Excel Assets Limited Beneficial owner 15,966,073 4.40
(Note 2) (FffzE2) BEEERA
William Xia GUO (Notes 1, 2 and 3) Beneficial owner and interest of 182,069,033 49.07
28 (KIzE1 ~ 2%3) controlled corporations

BEaliA ARZEGEE#R
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Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Note 1: Venturepharm Holdings Inc. is 47.63% directly held by Mr. William Xia
GUO and 44.94% held by Mr. William Xia GUO through Winsland Agent
Limited, his wholly and beneficially owned company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

Note 2: The controlled corporation, Bright Excel Assets Limited, is 100%
beneficially owned by Venturepharm Holdings Inc.

Note 3: Apart from shares held through Venturepharm Holdings Inc., the interest
of 16,310,377 shares comprising of 7,200,000 and 360,000 shares
underlying the options granted to him under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and Share Option Scheme respectively are beneficially owned
by Mr. William Xia GUO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, there
was no other persons who was recorded in the register of the
Company as having interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO or which were required, pursuant to section 336
of Part XV of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 18 to the financial statements, no
other contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the

year.

REXRRDRMEBERG 2FR

Mi3E1 : Venturepharm Holdings Inc. 2 BB LA B ERH
47.63% /%1 + AR B FE LA FEBEWins land Agent
Limited (R RBREZHSFMAKYL - AFEERERE
WG FE44.94%RRHE -

sk © 5242 #lAEBright Excel Assets Limited® 2B A% #
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. B 25 A °

Fi3E3 : B3 i@Venturepharm Holdings Inc.35 A 2 B ip o) -
DEREEHEA16,310,377 R MD 1R - HRBIE
RAR B IR N A R A AR 5t 81 e i AR 5t 813 T 1%
Z BB IRHEFT % K5 BIl7,200,0008% A% 15 K 360,0008% B

e

BRENFHEBEEIN  RZBEENF+_A=+—
B BAARECMESE  SEEAEMALR
RNATF 2 RGOSR G T A BREEF R
EIRHIEXVER 2 R 3D ERM AR R W BT 2 s
AR - KAREF S K HEKFIEXVEF 5336
RH A Z G B el 2 R SAR -

o

e

EERNEARGHZER

R BHRARMFISHEEIN  RELAHFRE
MEE SBEFEARRARETAMNBAR AR
PRI RARRIZEERETERKRAEREE
AEBRIEREH °
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SHARE OPTIONS CHEME

1.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the shareholder
on 31 March 20083, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) in order to
recognise and reward the contribution of certain Directors,
senior management and advisers, the details of which are
set out in the paragraph head “Share Option Scheme” in
Appendix IV to the Prospectus. As at 20 June 2003, options
comprising a total of 11,520,000 underlying shares were
granted. As at 31 December 2007, the options outstanding
are 11,520,000 and no options granted pursuant to the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme had been exercised,
cancelled or lapsed. Particulars of the outstanding options
that had been granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme as at 31 December 2008 are as follows:

Period during which the
options remain exercisable
after the date of grant

B AESHE

BRDERERAERETS

le ABRBERRR =TT =F=A=1+—

B EERERTNERESTS (B 7\&
%ﬁ%ﬁxﬁuﬁlﬁﬂx%ﬁ%b B ERERET
%% AT EEREBRZER  FBER

ZRMTEEIY [BEARFERTEl] — B’ - R=F
¥:¢KH:+E'KAEE&ﬁﬁ&é%
11,520,000 HHE AR 10 2 FE A - R ZFE
NE+=-HA=+—H " 11,520,00017 #& B #
MARTTE - BRBEE R SRS R BRER
B AR A T(E - RS R o
REZZFEZENF+_A=+—0 BEBALAA
AERABRESE SR EERARITEZE
ARIEFFIBANT

Number of underlying shares
under the option as
at 20.6.2003 and 31.12.2008

Exercise price = HR-ZTE=FXA=Z+HK

Name of grantees BN pershare —TEENE+=-A=+—H
ERAEE HEA W F1TE R BRITEE BRESRZEBRGEE
William Xia GUO (Notes 1 & 2) 10 years HK$0.32 7,200,000
28 (PfeE1%2) T 0.327% 7T
2 other participants (Notes 1 & 2) 10 years HK$0.32 2,520,000
MBEMm2EE (i1 k2) T4 0.32/ 87T
1 other participant (Note 3) 10 years HK$0.40 1,800,000
—ZEH M2 EE (FfzE3) T4 0.40% 7T

11,520,000
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Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

FERSE

Options granted to each of them contain a vesting schedule, pursuant
to which may exercise up to 30% of the underlying shares after
31 December 2003, (subject to Note 2), up to another 30% of the
underlying shares after 31 December 2004 and the balance after 31
December 2006.

Each of the grantees has undertaken to the Stock Exchange that they
will not exercise their options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Options
Scheme within the first 12 months from the Listing Date.

Options granted to an adviser contain a vesting schedule, pursuant
to which may exercise up to 30% of the underlying shares after 31
December 2002, up to another 30% of the underlying shares after 31
December 2003 and the balance after 31 December 2004. Each of
the grantees has undertaken to the Stock Exchange that they will not
exercise their options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Options Scheme
within the first 6 months from the Listing Date.

2. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions by the shareholders of

the Company on 23 May 2003, the Company adopted a

new share option scheme.

GEIE

FaE -

Fi RS

4

FEER2BREONGRERRE - Bt BETR
—EE=F+ A=+ BERTETSZRBEERN
0% B tE (EMf 22 RBRT) » R-ZFZMEF+
ZH=+—BETETZRAREMRN E30%. Bk
o RRZEERFET A=+ —RRERTEHTZ2E
Pt o

BAERACRB R A - R TR E12(8 A
A RERTSITERE SR AR SIRARERE S
R 2 BB -

BT 2B BRENTEBER - Hib - ®aOR
—EE_F+ A=+ BERTETSZRBEAKRN
0% ERE W_TT=F+-A=+—BHETE
NEREARN EH30% 2 BRE - KR _FT M4
TZHA=1T - BRTERT ZBEEE - ERERAD
MR ARG - R ET R EEARN - KT E
TR B IR A B & B AT B8 A i ot B X 2 R A o

2. BRESE

BERARARIER-_FTT=FAA-+=H
ZEERZRSE - AREERA— B R RES

E
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R-_ZEERFE=A_H EBLEIEREH
4,042,000/ 8@ M (0 < BERR#E - R=ZT T\
F+=ZA=+—H " £1,827,00017 AR #E
RITE - }HB2,150,0001p B IF % B E 2
BHZBRECHEHEKER - RZTTN
F+ZA=+—8 EHERBBERETSR
H oz MARITEBREFBNT

As at 2 March 2005, options comprising a total of 4,042,000
underlying shares were granted. As at 31 December 2008,
the options outstanding are 1,827,000 and 2,150,000
options granted pursuant to this Share Option Scheme had
been cancelled or lapsed. Particulars of the outstanding
options which have been granted under this Share Option
Scheme as at 31 December 2008 are as follows:

34

Period during which the
options remain exercisable

Number of underlying
shares under the option as
at 2.3.2005 and 31.12.2008

after the date of grant Exercise price RE-ESEZBRE=HA=-HK
Name of grantees BRI per share —EZEN\F+=A=1+—H
ARAME BEAR A FITEHIR BRTEE IBREY R 2 HERGEE
William Xia GUO 10 years HK$0.52 360,000
HE T4 0.52/87C
Other Directors 10 years HK$0.52 720,000
HihEE T 0.527% 7T
Other participant 10 years HK$0.52 747,000
Hih2mE T4 0.52% 7T
1,827,000
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3. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions by the shareholders of
the Company on 23 May 2003, the Company adopted a

new share option scheme.

3. BREE

EI

REARRBRRR-_FT=FAA_1+=H
ZEMRZR - ARARA—HH B RAER

As at 14 December 2005, options comprising a total RZZEZERFF+-AFTWAB EEESFIEE

of 1,458,000 underlying shares were granted. As at 31
December 2008, the options outstanding are 619,200 and
810,000 options granted pursuant to this Share Option
Scheme had been cancelled or lapsed. Particulars of the
outstanding options which have been granted under this
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2008 are as

follows:

Period during which the
options remain exercisable

31,458,000/ HHEAAR (0 < BB AR HE - KT F
+t&EF+=-A=+—8 ' F619,20017 i I #&
M AT - K A810,00017 1R & B8 Ik #E 51 &
BEZEREEHEIHEKAB - RZTTN
F+ZA=1+—8 BHEREERETER
2 MARITE BRI BN T ¢

Number of underlying
shares under the option as
at 14.12.2005 and 31.12.2008

after the date of grant Exercise price R-ZEZHRF+=-A+MH

Name of grantees B BR A AR pershare R_-ZFEENE+=-A=+—H

ARALR HE B A F1TEHA R BRITEE IBRREY R 2 HER B E B

William Xia GUO 10 years HK$0.45 360,000
$E +4 0.45% 7T

4 participants 10 years HK$0.45 259,200
AF 2 EE +F 0.457% 7T

619,200
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4. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 4. BIREE
Pursuant to the written resolutions by the shareholders of BEARFRER-_ZZ=FAA=+=H
the Company on 23 May 2003, the Company adopted a ZEMRZER  AARRA— BN BRERT
new share option scheme. £
As at 10 August 2006, options comprising a total of RZZFEEAFNATH BEELSPREHR
4,118,000 underlying shares were granted. As at 31 4,118,400/ A8 RN 0 2 BERRHE - K2 F
December 2008, the options outstanding are 3,435,900 F+ZRA=+—8 ' H3,435, QOOT\ﬁ%HxTEﬁ
and 950,400 options granted pursuant to this Share Option RITIE K A950,40017 48 15 B8 A% #E 51 81 3%
Scheme had been cancelled or lapsed. Particulars of the 2 BIREE WA ER AR - RZEENF
outstanding options which have been granted under this TZA=+—RH  BAREERETSIRD
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2008 are as ZEMARITEEREFIRAT
follows:
Number of underlying
Period during which the shares under the option as
options remain exercisable at 10.8.2006 and 31.12.2008
after the date of grant Exercise price RZEZERENATHER
Name of grantees B ERR L pershare —EEN\E+=-BA=+—H
ARAMSR HEI& A F4TEHARR BRITFEE BRESRZEBEROHE
William Xia GUO 10 years HK$0.36 324,000.00
HE T4 0.3647T
Other directors 10 years HK$0.36 792,000.00
HihE S T 0.36/5 7T
Other participant 10 years HK$0.36 1,800,900
Hh 2wk T4 0.3647T

2,916,900
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5. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions by the shareholders of
the Company on 23 May 2003, the Company adopted a
new share option scheme.

As at 10 May 2007, options comprising a total of 7,568,000
underlying shares were granted. As at 31 December 2007,
the options outstanding are 6,573,100 and 762,800 options
granted pursuant to this Share Option Scheme had been
cancelled or lapsed. Particulars of the outstanding options
which have been granted under this Share Option Scheme
as at 31 December 2008 are as follows:

Period during which the
options remain exercisable
after the date of grant

fBIRRESTE

BREARBDBRERR-_ZZ=FAA_+=H
ZEMRZR - ARARA—HH B RAER

EI

R-—ZEZT+tH&RA+H Eéﬁﬂj%ﬁ&é#\
7,568,000t AR 15 2 BB AR IE - K= T
F+=-—A=+—H " F6,573, 1oof\ﬁﬁﬂxﬁér‘1
RITE - K A762,80017 1R 15 B8 AR 4 51 &1 %
HBRECWEEIEIR - RZTENEF
+ZA=+—H EFEREEREAZRE
ZEARITEBRESBOAT

Number of underlying
shares under the option as
at 10.5.2007 and 31.12.2008

Exercise price R-ZEELFFATHK

Name of grantees BRI pershare —ZEENFE+-H=+-—H
ARAER HEAZ A FITEHARR BRTEE IBREY R ZHERGEE
William Xia GUO 10 years HK$0.625 966,000.00
HE T 0.625% 7T
Other directors 10 years HK$0.625 956,000.00
HihEE T 0.625/8 7
Other participant 10 years HK$0.625 4,651,100.00
Hih2mE +F 0.625/ 7T

6,573,100

COMPETING INTERESTS RS

As at 31 December 2008, none of the Directors or the

management shareholders of the Company and their respective

associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any

interest in a business that competes or may compete with the

business of the Group.

JiN

TENFT_A=1t—H ARARZEFHK

EEERRERESAZHEAL (EERAIZE
R ET AR A BEEPME ] R AR B XA A
BEBRBFNERB RS #E
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BOARD PRACTICE AND PROCEDURES

Since the listing of the Company, the Company has complied
with Board Practices and Procedures as set out in Rules 5.46
to 5.68 of the GEM Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS
received from each

The Company has Independent

Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation for
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Independent Non-executive Directors have confirmed that

they are independent.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares during
the year ended 31 December 2008.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 22% of the Group’s sales. The
largest customer accounted for approximately 6% of the sales
of the Group.

Aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers were less than 10% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders
which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the Company'’s issued share capital had any interest in the

five largest customers of the Group.

BEE2EARER
ANARE EMUAKR  —HEBSFAIZER EMREISE
5.46E5.68H 2 EETEEREIERF °

BAFATES 22BN

ARRREAREAIFER L AR R 5E6.095 K 2 555
YHRRTEETBIMEZFERER - FBIIFANT
EECHABBIAL -

BE HEIEEERFARSG

HE_ZZENF+_A=+—HILFERN  xRA
SEEMAMBRRMERE - HERERERN
RAE] LW o

FEHREERER

FR AEELATFEASREHEEN22% -
RABTPIEAREBEHEREL6% °

AEBRAEEEEGHABER VN AERBE
EE10%

REEMA BERRFEETRABS% L E
EHBEBEATHEAREBERAKEELAR
PrhEE EEs o
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(1) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company applied the principles and fully complied
with the Code Provision as set out in Appendix 15 of the
GEM Listing Rules (“CG Code”) save with certain deviations
in respect of the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer.

(2) DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Company Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
in compliance with the provisions that are set out in
the GEM Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for
Directors’ dealings of securities since 29 June 2005.
Specific enquiries have been made with all Directors and
the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Company Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2008.

(1)

(2)

TEERER

AR AKAEBI AR _E AR R M 81 5P &R R
REEESTETAETRMRN (REERT
MRTRI - ERRARARE  REHEIE
HEITHARZ AR -

BEEZESFRS

ARBIEBRAIZER EHARBIFTSEURES - 2%
MEMBOTAESETERR SN QAT
A - ERARFR —_ZEZHF A=+ 1A
REEEEZFCBRTER - BRE2BES
ELARENER  EFHR RERBE—
ZEEN\F+_A=T—BLEEEE2F —H
BT AR STRIFTEURE 2R o
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(3) BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ANCE REPORT

(3) Ex®

The overall governance structure of the Company is set NAFIEETEBIT ¢
out below:
The Board
g
Chairman appointed by the board
HEESZETRE
2 Executive Directors
I MITES
3 Non-Executive Directors
SfIIFHNITES
3 Independent Non-Executive Directors
SRIBIFNTTES
Executive Directors Audit Committee
HOTES ERRAE
William Xia GUO 3 Independent Non-Executive Directors
HE SRIBIFNITES
Maria Xuemei SONG Wang Hong Bo (Chairman)
RS FADOR(EE)
Paul CONTOMICHALOS
Wu Ming Yu
REFH
I
Senior Management
BREERE
Mr. George Fei Peng, Vice President
TRSE - BB
Dr. Tarun GUPTA, Co-head of the Group
Business Development
Tarun GUPTATE + » REBEEBEREMBHFEE
Dr. Tom Tuo JIN, Joint Chief Technology Officer
REEL - BRI
Notes: fHaE -
(@ The Non-Executive Directors of the Company during the year and up (a)

to the date of this report are:

FENG Tao
WU Xin
Nathan Xin ZHANG

Apart from Nathan Xin ZHANG and Wang Hongbo, who do not have
a service contract, each of the Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for three years from 10 July 2003 (the
“Listing Date”). Each of the Executive Directors and Non-executive
Directors was appointed as Director of the Company respectively
subject to termination in certain circumstances as stipulated in the
relevant service contracts, if applicable.

On 11 July 2008, the service contract with each director other than
Nathan Xin ZHANG and WANG Hong Bo, expired and be renewed for
one more year.

FARBEAREDY  ARAZEEFNTES
=3

e
R
SRR

BRRME FADRS B RISEKIN  SEFE R
AARFYE-ZZ=FtA+RA ([EWHEH]) &£
RAM=ZFZRBAH -  ERTEERIFNTES
HEZER/AATNEE  EANEERRBEH (1@
) ERTARZETHER T FRKLE -

—EENFLAT B BRRMEREALRI  BE

EZRBANCE ML EER —F -
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(c) Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

The Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Company is
collectively responsible for the oversight of the management
of the business and affairs of the Group with the objective
of enhancing shareholders value.

The Board of the Company comprises a total of eight
Directors, with two Executive Directors, three Non-executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors.
One-third of the Board is Independent Non-executive
Directors and one of them has appropriate professional
qualifications. Reviews are made regularly of the Board
composition to ensure that it has a balance of expertise,
skills and experience appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the Company. All Independent Non-
executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent
in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the
approval and monitoring of the Group’s overall strategies
and policies; approval of annual budgets and business
plans; evaluating the performance of the Group; and
oversight of management. One of the important roles of the
Chairman is to provide leadership to the Board to ensure
that the Board acts in the best interests of the Group. All
Directors have been consulted about any matters proposed
for inclusion in the agenda. With the support of Executive
Directors and the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks
to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and receives adequate and
reliable information in a timely manner.

Regular Board meetings of the year are scheduled in
advance to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. Four
regular Board meetings at approximately quarterly intervals
have been scheduled for 2008. The Directors can attend
meetings in persons or through other means of electronic
communication in accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association.

(€ BEXFHEEEI  BHERRNEEDSERMZER
BFEARE LERZEFEANALEEMANE AR
AVERMARER -FATELHE CEERER
SN TEE T AR L2 RIS A4 ©

ARAEFE ([EFg)) ARAREEAKHE
EEREBZER  URITBRREER/EN -

ARFEZEHAR/N\LBEFER  EPWMER
HITES  ZRARFAITESFTR=2RBILIFH
TEE - ZNZESENERBIUFANTE
E EP—RAQEEXER BT
HAR - UWHERRNEE ZEXZMH  RERER
TREFE  UESARREHTE - 2RBUL
FATESHTE EMRAFEIABRMEE LIS
5l - BERARESIGXEELSD

EEeHEIFRE  AEERREEASERE
REEREGR - #LEFRBAERXB S AR
SEXRE REEEHE - TRAT-HERR
B REBEEE  URFREFSUAEERE
MeETH - T RBHAZRRIFHELIEHRE
BEEER - BEITESTRARANEZXS
ITRBNERERESLREZAANENESTS
SRR FR - WERRALAEEF -

ARAENEBEEHEFEERFTARIIEHE
KOUBEEBETARELFE N_FTTN\F -
ERBFERLHBTHRAEHRE=TEEE - R
BARRZAFAGSEREMA  EXARSIE
BEFRATALESS
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Board papers are circulated not less than seven days
before the Board meetings to enable the Directors to
make informed decisions on matters to be raised at the
Board meetings. The Company Secretary and the Qualified
Accountant shall attend all regular Board meetings to advise
on corporate governance, statutory compliance, accounting
and financial matters when necessary. Directors shall have
full access to information on the Group and are able to
obtain independent professional advice whenever deemed
necessary by the Directors. The Company Secretary assists
the Chairman in establishing the meeting agenda, and each
Director may request inclusion of items in the agenda.
Minutes of the board meetings are kept by the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection by Directors.

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2008, the
Board met and held four meetings in March, May, August
and November 2008. The attendance records of the

aforementioned four Board meetings are set out below:

EEEXMHERESTERETRLERA
B85 - AREREES /?Jtﬂn‘ NEFEEREHL
ZEREHABRE - RAMERAERS

%’JrEﬂi/Eﬁf‘ﬁﬁ*ﬁmﬁﬁ?i? g TRFEE
RREEES EEMR0 - St RMBEE
RIEER - %%F‘E’Tﬁfﬂﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ

WHERESRATERNEBLEXER -
"T%MET%BJJEF‘%%%QE%E;%E' MEES
AEZEXKRZEEHAEE - EES 2R L&A
NEMERFE WA HEEER] -

BE_TTNE+_A= HiE+={&
B E2@f¢R-_TTN\E=A A8 N
Akt+—ABTHREH - Lm@b’?%%@
SR HECHEEHIIMT

Attendance of individual directors at
board meetings during the year
FRAERNES ESSSRHEESR

Attendance no. Attendance rate

H IR B i FE =R
Executive Director HITES
William Xia GUO 9= 4/4 100%
Maria Xuemei SONG REM 4/4 100%
Non-executive Directors FHITES
FENG Tao 5E 4/4 100%
WU Xin SR 4/4 100%
Nathan Xin ZHANG RAR 4/4 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHITES
WANG Hong Bo T4 4/4 100%
Paul CONTOMICHALOS Paul CONTOMICHALOS 4/4 100%
WU Ming Yu SRR 4/4 100%
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(4) CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 4) EERITHAR

44

Chairman of the Board is responsible for the leadership and
effective running of the Board, and ensures that all keys
and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a

timely and constructive manner.

However, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
has not yet been appointed. Currently, the day-to day
management of the Company’s business is handled by
the executive directors and senior management, who
take the responsibility to run the Group’s business and to
implement the Group’s strategy so as to achieve the overall

commercial objectives of the Company.

(5) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Currently, the Remuneration Committee comprises the
Chairman of the Board Mr. William Xia GUO, a Non-
executive Director Mr. FENG Tao and an Independent
Non-executive Director Mr. Paul CONTOMICHALQOS. Mr.
William Xia GUO is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include making recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration
of Directors and senior management and reviewing the
specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors
and senior management by reference to corporate goals
and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

(6) NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
nomination of Directors is determined by the Board with
approvals by the shareholders in the general meeting.

(5)

(6)

EEgIRAEREEZEREHLENE
1 AERESZ S LB AR WA
BEERHEESAE

AW RRBRAZREEMFMTRAAE - B
B ARAEBZAREERATEERS
MEBRABHT NERABELEAKEE
RHETAREBERE  UWERRAFBREEE
SEZ

ESME

BE FNEZEShESSEFIELE
FERMITERIHELE KRB IEHNTTE SPaul
CONTOMICHALOS 485K ° BB L4 A%
MEEEEE -

FHEZBE R T EREANEHEST SR
ERABZHMEZ ARBRRELEE - A
EEERNEBRER  Y2EEESTHE
RZARBBERE  RAZBATESFK
SREBEABZBEMNEHES -

REES

REARA 2 ARIABERRAR > EFRA
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(7) AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The coming annual general meeting should approve
the appointment of UHY ZTHZ HK CPA Limited as the
auditors of the Group and that the Board is and be hereby
authorized to fix auditors’ remuneration. Non-audit services
were not provided by previous auditors to the Company
during the twelve months ended 31 December 2008.

(8) AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established with written terms
of reference in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the audit committee are to review
the Company’s annual reports and accounts, half-yearly
reports and quarterly reports and internal control system of
the Group and provide advice and comments to the Board.
The audit committee has three members comprising the
three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. WANG
Hong Bo, Mr. Paul CONTOMICHALOS and Mr. WU Ming
Yu. Mr. WANG Hong Bo is the chairman of the audit
committee.

(7) ZEE <

RESRITZRERFAE LBBEZERXR
BESSTMEBABER AR R/SAEEZH
Bl SR N EREEECZHSAMME - &
E-TEN\GFFTA=1T—HIE+=EAH
- BIAEZ SR & R AR AR IEEZ R
ﬁ% o

8) BEHZEEE

EZEZEBEEM - WEBREIZER EMRA
EHEAEBESE BEZEES2EER
ERABBEARAIZEERSEREE « ¥4
MERFTERSURAEE 2 A 3P EEZE |
E-UREEFSRHEBERLRES BZRZE
EH-FBUIFATESTAKLE - Paul
CONTOMICHALOS 5t 4 & R BR % 7t A 485K -
FLURGERBZEZEGZEF o
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The audit committee holds meetings on quarterly basis. EBEREZESEZFRTEHR R -HE_ZTZT
During the twelve months ended 31 December 2008, NEF+ZA=+—HIE+=EA  FZZEE
the audit committee held four meetings and reviewed SERITYREE IE%B@$’$IZ¢F§*
the Group’s annual report, quarterly and interim financial WE - FTERPHMBESR - LR ER
results. The attendance records of the aforementioned four ZEeeR 2 BRTEHT ZZD—I—

audit committee meetings are set out below:

Attendance of member at audit
committee meetings during the year

FRAEREZEEEREZHER
Attendance no. Attendance rate
HERE HER
Members K&
WANG Hong Bo FAK 4/4 100%
Paul CONTOMICHALOS Paul CONTOMICHALOS 4/4 100%
WU Ming Yu EL:EED) 4/4 100%
(9) DIRECTORS’ ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF THEIR Q) EEEMESEERAMBHRRZER
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors acknowledge that they take full responsibility B REDEBREREVHERE -

in the preparation of the financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Venturepharm Laboratories Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 50 to 134
which comprise the consolidated and the Company balance
sheets as at 31st December 2008, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

BEENRERERAF
(RESFBHMA L BERAF)
2RBRRZBIZBAHRE

AZBME TR EZE0EFIMEMAELR
REXBRAA ([ARA)) kMt BAR (T4%
B WEEMBERER  BRR_FTN\F+=
A=+ RZEREERBERIEEZALFE
ZEERER  FARRBHRNMEARENRE
= REBSFBORME MEMHAME

EEREUBHRER2EME

EEAERBEGIMASRHEEN B RS
FEAIRFRERARIGHIZHERE  AARHLE
ERAFPHINMHFERHRR HEEERER
it BUTRARERHYEERQ T 2575
HARBR 2 AEREE - ARRE Y | E KRR
it (TN d E B RFFREREIE) R ELEM
BEESTHEER : RETRBR MEHAEZ €5
mE -
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AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

BBz BE

A s EERRBESER AR EM
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group as at 31st December 2008 and of the Group’s loss and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

UHY VOCATION HK CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

David Tze Kin NG,

Auditor

Practising Certificate Number P553
March 25, 2009

=R

AZBMABR REEBHBEREENEHZ
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
= N

Year ended 31st December

BLt+=-—A=+—H&EE

2008 2007
—EENF —ZETLF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
P AR¥ T ARBFIT
Revenue EERA 5 39,186 38,729
Cost of sales EEADFIN (23,804) (15,771)
Gross profit EF 15,382 22,958
Administrative expenses TERAX (47,544) (18,165)
Other income HEe A 22 12,315 907
Operating (loss)/profit B A 24 (19,847) 5,700
Finance income FEWA 23 573 1,526
Finance costs s E B 23 (7,968) (5,338)
Finance costs — net S EBR — FE 23 (7,395) (3,812)
(Loss)/profit before income tax A0 F15E (27,242) 1,888
Income tax FriS#i 26 9,930 (788)
(Loss)/profit for the year F R (17,312) 1,100
Attributable to: PE4L :
Equity holders of the Company VNN S S SN (16,354) 1,597
Minority interest DERR R WS (958) (497)
(17,312) 1,100
Basic (loss)/earnings per share EARER W 28 (4.52) CENTS = 0.44 CENTS
(4.52)1ll 0.444l
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share HEsR k= 28 (2.94) CENTS 0.42 CENTS
(2.94) 1l 0.421l

The notes on pages 55 to 134 are an integral part of these

financial statements.

BEPME5 =134 B RE R T MR AR ER D °



VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED  Annual Report 2008

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mREEERMBER

As at 31st December

BlE+=—B=+—H
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETLE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M5 AR® T AREET T
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB k& 6 10,920 11,267
New drugs technology TR i 7 10,445 6,958
Investment in an associate i /N vy 9 - 833
Deferred tax assets RIEFIH & E 21 8,128 -
29,493 19,058
Current assets REEE
Work-in-progress EE 11 56,286 66,503
Trade receivables JEUE 5 BR3K 12 13,200 30,721
Prepayments, deposits and AR - Ze R
other receivables H o R AR 13 34,435 34,841
Amounts due from related companies JE UK FA BsE X B) /08 14 - 629
Financial assets at fair value through BEATEERERLRSZ
profit or loss TREE 15 46,684 72,409
Cash and cash equivalents HENIEESEEY 16 6,711 30,803
157,316 235,906
Total assets HWEE 186,809 254,964
EQUITY e &R
Capital and reserves attributable to EATFBREFEA
equity holders of the company PE{LRE =
Ordinary shares A&7 17 38,407 38,160
Reserves it 18 66,329 82,484
104,736 120,644
Minority interest in equity DY RER 1,620 2,592
Total equity FrEERERALE 106,356 123,236
LIABILITIES &f&
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings EEN 20 65,785 95,936
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables FERTE SRR N E B R 19 8,161 5,522
Receipt in advance TR AR R 4,378 24,207
Income tax liabilities B R P15 HL 2,129 6,060
Borrowings SELEE N 20 - 3
14,668 35,792
Total liabilities EEHEEE 80,453 131,728
Total equity and liabilities FEEEaRkAEEEE 186,809 254,964
Net current assets BN & E R E 142,648 200,114
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAR 172,141 219,172

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 25 March 2009:

Mr. William Xia GUO
Director

The notes on pages 55 to 134 are an integral part of these

financial statements.

Dr. Maria Xuemei SONG
Director

=
FESLLE

EFECR=BENEZA=TRAERER
e

B

KEWHGEL

BEMIS5 =134 B Mt A SRR AR ZDD -
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BALANCE SHEET
EER B R

As at 31st December
BLE+=—A=t+—H

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLHF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M5 ARET T ARBEFIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment A 6 - 6
Investments in subsidiaries RITE R EZIRE 8 75,376 64,743
75,376 64,749
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H e BGR 5,218 1,476
Amount due from a related company FE IS FEEE N B TR I8 14 - 6
Financial assets at fair value through RGMECRERE
profit or loss 15 45,851 72,409
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMBEEED 16 3,316 17,193
54,385 91,084
Total assets EEHAE 129,761 155,833
EQUITY e EER
Capital and reserves attributable to AT BRERFE AEGER
the company’s equity holders
Ordinary shares A&7 17 38,407 38,160
Reserves R 18 21,854 21,620
Total equity FrEEERES 60,261 59,780
LIABILITIES &
Non-current liabilities ERBEME
Borrowings &k 20 65,785 95,936
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables FEHE 5 AR SR N EL b A 5Kk 19 3,715 114
Borrowings SELEE N 20 - 3
3,715 117
Total liabilities BEAHE 69,500 96,053
Total equity and liabilities FrEERERRABES 129,761 165,833
Net current assets REBEEFE 50,670 90,967
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAR 126,046 155,716

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 25 March 2009:

EFEEER_ETENF=A-+hBHAERKE

iz -

Mr. William Xia GUO
Director

Dr. Maria Xuemei SONG 2= =)
Director EE L KEG1EL

The notes on pages 55 to 134 are an integral part of these BEMTS5 =134 B I st AR 1S MR AR ZB 1 o

52 financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
e B2 F R

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HZE=—ZTZENF+-_A=+—HIFE

Available-

for-sales

Share-  financial
hased assets
payment  reserve

Statutory
enterprise
expansion

Share  reserve A€  Special  Capital  Statutory fund
capital  RAAH SMEE  reseve  reseve  reserve AELE
R& ffE fff BARGE E4ARE AERE REES

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'00

0 RMB'000

Retained
earnings

REEN

Minority

interests
SRR
4

Total

A

RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETL ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARETT

At 1st January 2007 R-EZ+E-f-H 38,160 53 (1,08 6,039 894 3803 6986 64,144 3089 122,136
Transfer to reserves HRTEE - 2,800 1,082 - 6 - - (3,838 - -
Profit for the year KEEEF = = = = - - - 1,597 (497) 1,100
At 31st December 2007  R=FT+4E

and at 1st January 2008  +ZA=+—HR

“ER\E-A-H 38,160 2,853 = 6,039 900 3,803 6,986 61,903 2,592 123,236

Share premium for HETEROHE

exercise of share option - - - - 199 - - - - 199
New issue of shares HERR 196 = = = = = = = = 196
Issue of new shares ESERERN

pursuant to exercise of

share options 51 - - - - - = = = 51
Exercise of share option ~ {T{F i - 87) - - 87 - - - - -
Disposal of interest in RETFAANDIY

a subsidiary with &t n

minority shareholders - - - - - - - - (14) (14)
Loss for the year TEEBR = = - - - - - (16,3%4) (908)  (17,312)
At 31st December 2008 RZBENE

+=A=t-H 38,407 2,766 - 6,039 1,186 3,803 6,986 45,549 1,620 106,356

The notes on pages 55 to 134 are an integral part of these BEFTS55 22134 B I 5t B S R AR EB 1 o

financial statements.
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HERBEXARAT —FE/NFFH

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
HEHETRER

Year ended 31st December

M2A31H
2008 2007
—EEN\F —TTLF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
hr=s AR¥ T ARETTT

Cash flows from operating activities RETHRERE
Cash used in operations LEEEFARSE 29 (24,890) (22,546)
Interest paid FEZ W (3,634) =
Income tax paid Fr8®i sz (2,129) (77)
Net cash used in operating activities L TEB)IR F R (30,653) (22,623)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHZ2RERE
Decrease in unlisted investment WAIE ETIRE - 9,396
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  BEE¥% - W= L& 6 (2,387) (6,279)
Decrease in investment in an associate WA E B ERE - 2,235
Decrease in available for sales investment WA SR A - 19,248
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at IR ZMEEMEE

fair value through profit or loss 7,753 (72,409)
Interest received W B F) B 752 1,526
Net cash used in investing activities HEEBREF RN 6,118 (46,283)
Cash flows from financing activities EETHELENRERE
Proceeds from issuance of new shares BITIREMBIR S 446 -
Repayment of borrowings EBRERFANES - (6,451)
Increase in corporate bonds payable BT ARIEASEBIRS - 95,936
Net cash generated from financing activities Z&ESIREIF R A 446 89,485
Net (decrease)/increase in cash, HeRBESEEYWFIEME

cash equivalents and bank overdrafts (24,089) 20,579
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts REeRBSEEYWHRNERE

at the beginning of the year 30,800 10,221
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts B EEYWHIREREE

at the end of the year 16 6,711 30,800
The notes on pages 55 to 134 are an integral part of these BEP55E 134 AP 3t A M R AR -

54 financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt % R MO

GENERAL INFORMATION

Venturepharm Laboratories Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands on 21st May 2002 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law
(2002 Revision) of the Cayman Islands. The address of
its registered office is Scotia Centre, 4th Floor, PO Box
2804, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands, and
its principal place of business is disclosed in “Corporate

Information” of the annual report.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries and associates are

set out in notes 8 and 9 respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Renminbi (“RMB’000”) which is the

functional currency of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31st December 2008 were approved for issue by the board
of directors on 25 March 2009.

DNAEHR

E2RREXER AR (LTHBAR) &
HMBARI (A THABEER) R_TT_F
TAZT+—BHRBRAEHSQAE(ZTE

ZFEEEIR) ERESHESEMK S AERR
BEREMFEARF - HFEMHESEE I BScotia
Centre, 4th Floor, PO Box 2804,George
Town, Grand Cayman, Caymanlslands ' i
HXrZLEZMBBRBERARFRIATER]
A o

ARBZEBERBREER - EWERQF
KB ERR 2 EBEBD I BN E8 &I

ARG A BRRARRARNDEEEARE

TIwmS -

BE-TT/\F+-A=+—BLFEZR
Aﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ_??hi ﬂ +£Em
ESSRETIE -
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BRRREERRAT —FZNFFH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt % R MO

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all

the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). The consolidated financial statements
also include the applicable disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in Note 4.

2. TEEHHRME
REZEEANBERRMBEEGTBRE

IR - R A BHAEIN  ZFEBRREME
RARMBEZ2|EFE -

21 RBEEXE

AEBESEEMBERIRIEFTEYHER
SEA ([FEPBRE LR ] - HiiaE
EREREEETMAE ([BESMA
) R ZEERENBEMBHRE
R - ERAGENRRE) G - B
PBRRMEBEEE RO REEE

ERGIBRAFAIZERESH LA
(TR EMRA ) ZEREERE °

[F#d

REFAEAUBRELEN ZHBRE
BERAETHRSH G - EEENA
RERAAEESTRRBRFAITELY
B o 35 K= E HIBT R A8 1 2 B AR
EMBMEZBREGFTZERBEBER
BiaE4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt % R MO

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2. RS BRUE &)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RUEE (&)

(a) In 2008, the Group adopted the following standard, @ ATARBEAHMEIBEER ZEFT R

amendment and interpretations to existing
standards that are effective in 2008 but are not

relevant to the Group’s operation.

HKAS 39 Financial instruments:
Recognition and
measurement

HKFRS 2 — Group and

treasury share

HK(FRIC) - Int 11

transactions

HK(IFRIC) — Int 12 Service Concession
arrangements

HKAS 19 - The limit

on a defined benefit

HK(FRIC) - Int 14

asset, minimum funding
requirements and their
interaction

(b) Amendment to existing standard that is not yet

effective and has not been early adopted by
Group.

The following amendment to existing standard
has been published and is mandatory for the
Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after
1st January 2009 or later periods, but the Group
has not early adopted them:

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of financial
statements (effective from

1st January 2009)

2 R-ZTTENFLEY BERK
KBz L EER -

HKAS 39 &@T A : BRMTE

HK(FRIC) HKFRS 2 —&EK
—Int 11 HBRD R 5
HK(FRIC) RRFSHFeTHE 2 &5
—Int 12
HK(FRIC) HKAS 19 — A E&H
—Int 14 BERE -
REESERRK
M & 1 B R R

(b) BITEAIAEE = M AKLE 2 Al
TTAESE BT R

I EERES LIS 8
27 M SR BRA DA T R AT
METEAMLERAAE-FE
NE—A—BRRZEREHHEN
17+ DREIRAIRA

HKAS 1 M HRERINR (T NE
({BIERR) —A—H4ER)
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BRRREERRAT —FZNFFH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt % R MO

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHBERBE (&)

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RBEEXE (&)

(0) BFALERM W A IR E
B - (HBFTER) T REE

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by Group.

UFAEAGLERARES =%
TAE—F—BRNZEEHDHY

The following standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards have been

58

publisheld and are mandatory for the Group’s 1T BED T KL mE &R -
accounting periods begllnmng on or after 1st WINITEAIMIE T R IE
January 2009 or later periods but are not relevant
for the Group’s operations:
HKAS 1 Presentation of financial HKAS 1 BBARIIR
(Amendment) statements (effective from (BIEhR) (ZZEZNF
1st January 2009) —A—B4£%)
HKAS 16 Property, plant and equipment HKAS 16 %1% - BiE k&
(Amendment) (and consequential (BIERR)  (RBERIEIEARHKAS 7,
amendment to HKAS 7, Uﬁé}miiﬂ)
“Statement of cash flows”) (ZEENF
(effective from —A—BE%)
1st January 2009)
HKAS 19 Employee benefits (effective HKAS 19 B TEF
(Amendment) from 1st January 2009) (BERR) (ZZ2ZhE
—RB—B4E®)
HKAS 20 Accounting for government HKAS 20  BUTREHRAIRIR &
(Amendment) grants and disclosure of (BIERR)  BRFEBNEE
government assistance (ZEENF
(effective from —A—BE%)
1st January 2009)
HKAS 23 Borrowing costs (effective HKAS 23  {&EREHM
(Amendment) from 1st January 2009) (fBIEhR) (ZZ2ZNE
—B—BA4£%)
HKAS 23 Borrowing costs (effective HKAS 23 &R EH
(Revised) from 1st January 2009) (BER) (ZETNLF
—B—BA4£%)
HKAS 27 Consolidated and separate HKAS 27 %F/\&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&&i‘%
(Amendment) financial statements (BEMR) (ZETAEF
(effective from —A—B&EX)
1st January 2009)
HKAS 27 Consolidated and separate HKAS 27 lxa REFHBRE
(Revised) financial statements (EER) (ZETAEF
(effective from +A—BER)
1st July 2009)
HKAS 28 Investments in associates HKAS 28 Bt ARIERE
(Amendment) (and consequential (BER)  (RERELES

amendments to HKAS 32,
Financial Instruments:
Presentation and

HKFRS 7, Financial
instruments: Disclosures)
(effective from

1st January 2009).

HKAS32, [ T :
TE B RS Rk R RO 53R
KHKAST
SRTA : #HE)
(ZZ2ENF
—A—B4%)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt % R MO

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2. RS BRUE &)

21 RBEE (F)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and have

(c) fRERL - 2 7] IFAE 52 AT R A A 2E
A~ (HHETTERAY) 1E5TR2FE (B)

not been early adopted by Group. (Continued)

HKAS 29 Financial reporting in HKAS 29  BHBERERTH
(Amendment) hyperinflationary (BIERR)  BHHE
economies (effective (ZZZNF
from 1st January 2009) —A—B&EX)
HKAS 31 Interests in joint ventures HKAS 31  Et&ARHEZR
(Amendment) (and consequential (BIEMR) (REEREBER
amendments to HKAS 32 HKAS 32H1HKFRS 7)
and HKFRS 7) (effective (ZZBNF
from 1st January 2009) —A—B4%)
HKAS 32 Financial instruments: HKAS 32  &@iTA:
(Amendment) Presentation (effective ({&1EmR) Eﬁﬁkﬁﬁﬁqﬂ 051 57
from 1st January 2009) (ZBENF
—B—B4£%)
HKAS 36 Impairment of assets HKAS 36  &BERE
(Amendment) (effective from (BIER) (ZTZNF
1st January 2009) —A—B&EX)
HKAS 38 Intangible assets (effective HKAS 38 BV EE
(Amendment) from 1st January 2009) (BER) (ZZEZNEF
—A—HEXK)
HKAS 39 Financial instruments: HKAS 39 S@TIE: AxHEE
(Amendment) Recognition and (BIEhR)  (ZZ2ZNEF
measurement (effective —A—B4%)
from 1st January 2009)
HKAS 40 Investment property HKAS 40 REMEE
(Amendment) (and consequential (BEMR)  (BERIEIERHKAS16)
amendments to HKAS16) (ZZ2ZNE
(effective from —A—B4%)
1st January 2009)
HKAS 41 Agriculture (effective HKAS 41  EBX (ZZTh&F
(Amendment) from 1st January 2009) (BER) —A—B&£Z0
HKFRS 1 First time adoption of HKFRS 1 BIRHITHKFRS
(Amendment) HKFRS (effective from (BEWR) (ZETNEF
1st January 2009) —A—B4%%)
HKFRS 2 Share-based payment HKFRS 2 BRfpfs
(Amendment) (effective from (BIEhR) (ZZEZNF
1st January 2009) —A—B4£%)
HKFRS 3 Business combinations HKFRS 3  ¥EBKAHF
(Revised) (effective from (EER) (ZETAEF
1st July 2009) +A—BRER)
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BRRREERRAT —FZNFFH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt % R MO

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2. RS BRUE &)

21 REEE (&)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to

(c) I RLERL - 2 7] IFAE 52 5 R 4 &

60

existing standards that are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by Group. (Continued)

HKFRS 5 Non-current assets held
(Amendment) for sale and discontinued
operations (and
consequential amendment
to HKFRS 1, First-time
adoption) (effective
from 1st July 2009)

HKFRS 8 Operating segments
(effective from
1 January2009)

HK(IFRIC) — Int13  Customer loyalty
programmes (effective
from 1st July 2008)

HK(IFRIC) — Int15  Agreements for construction
of real estates (effective
from 1st January 2009)

HK(IFRIC) — Int16  Hedges of a net investment
in a foreign operation
(effective from
1st October 2008)

HK(IFRIC) — Int17  Distributions of non-cash
assets to owners
(effective from
1 July 2009)

HK(IFRIC) — Int18  Transfers of assets from
customers (effective for
transfers of assets from
customers received
from 1 July 2009)

There are a number of minor amendments to
HKFRS 7, “Financial instruments: Disclosures”,
HKAS 8, “Accounting policies, changes in
accounting estimates and errors”, HKAS 10,
“Events after the balance sheet date”, HKAS
18, “Revenue” and HKAS 34, “Interim financial
reporting” which are not addressed above. These
amendments are unlikely to have an impact on the
Group’s financial statements and have therefore
not been analysed in detail.

A~ (HHETTEReY) EETREFEE ()

HKFRS 5  HEIEREEEF

(BIERR)  #RIEMEZE
(BER{EIEAHKFRS 1
BHEWIT)
(Z2ENF
+A—HBHER)

HKFRS 8  &%%E5
(ZETNF
—A—B4E%)
HK(IFRIC) %ﬁﬂﬂé}ﬁﬂ |
- Int13 —TENF
+A—HER)
HK(IFRIC) REERLAR
— Int15 (Z2ENEF
—RB—B4®%)
HK(FRIC) BINFIREEHRE
- Int16 (ZBENF
+HA—H4ER)

HK(FRIC) FReBEHE TRR
—Int17 (ZZZThF
+A—BRBEX)

HK(IFRIC) Eﬁigﬁfﬁmﬁﬁ‘ﬁ%
~Int18 (Z2ZThF
+A—B#ER)

BINBEHZ EELEREM NG
EFTWHKFRS 7 [ @ T & : #
Z | HKAS 8- [E5HK - @5t
AT EMAESEEIE] - HKAS 10 -
rﬁ?ﬁ%% H 1% £ 1H] ' HKAS

»TUg A | FIHKAS 34 @ [FR HA BF
iﬁ&ij BB T e EARE B
TEHRE - BULB AL -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt % | R K

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Foreign currency translation

@

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the
each of the Group’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the
functional and presentation currency of the Group
and Company.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

2.3 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries made up to 31st December.

(@)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group
has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity.

2. RS BRUE &)

2.2 HERS

(@) ZEER ZIBR & ¥

TrEESEB2HMBREMBEZ
HE  DERZERBKEMECEE
%@%%ZE%UW%%%Dﬁ
E-AKERRRIZCNERERE
BAEARE [ARK]D) - ?v?/m\ﬁﬁﬂ‘k
MEAARKEZS o

(b) X ZHErEE

SNER SR FHEEEBZR
TEXMESEEE AREFER
SRR RIREE B 2R BIAS
KitEcEBEERABMELZ
PE R - ORI R TR -

A

i}

REMBHRREBAAARE BB
AFTZA=+—BNHBHRE -

hu|

(a) HIEBLA]

MEBAREAEBEBEEEZEEMK

REERRZMBEERBIERKA
MzER —REAHBAYHER
ERIRE - B EAEEREE
Hl5—EER - BRIAITERA N
BMIBERERZFEREENRT
LAZE & o
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BRRREERRAT —FZNFFH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt % R MO

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHBERBE (&)

(Continued)
2.3 Consolidation (Continued) 23 =& (&)

(a) Subsidiaries (Continued) (a) KB A (&)

62

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured at
the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the
date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable
to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective
of the extent of any minority interest. The excess
of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of
the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of
acquisition is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference
is recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
in the consolidated financial statements to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses (Note 2.5). The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

MEBARERHEEBEARE
BeEf&A AR - HBAREZES
BRI ARFELSEEARK -

& B WOE & 5HE S P A B B
RAAR - WA SRR E B
HREEE BBETRATARME
ERARABZATFE MEEERE
EEETAR - XEBAHREBAZD
BAEENAEZABMIRA
B BRRWEBBERZAFE
o TEIREMD BB ERE LR - K
BRABLASEREEAD S
BEEFERATEZZRIEBEA
R o U B R AR R BB AT B 2 7]
ZEEFEATE EER KRS
RERERE -

il

SEARARZLHAZRS - RPER
NRARBRWEEG TLAHE - BRIER
SIREMBREEREBEIERE &
AIRBERBETTALEE - HEBQ
AZERRCRBEFEHLE -
NEREREERBZBRTE —
B o

EXARRZEERBBERA  RHTE
RAZWEBRAEHRBERSE
EETIER (FfFE2.5) - IMBRAR 2%
BHARARE B R ERRBAR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt % R MO

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHBERBE (&)

(Continued)
2.3 Consolidation (Continued) 23 =& (&)

(b) Transactions with minority interests

(b) HELEKEZ FIAIX 5

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions
with minority interests as transactions with parties
external to the Group. Disposals to minority interest
result in gains and losses for the Group and are
recorded in the consolidated income statement.
Purchase from minority interests result in goodwill,
being the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant shares acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary.

5 850 MR 2 5 IR R W5
BUEFREZBE  R2EMN
R ARERA KEE - BEN
BARE - (RAKBAAEES
EMIEENRZ Z R AES -

(c) Associate companies (c) HENA]
Associate companies are all entities over which BERAREMBASEHESER
the Group has significant influence but not control, FEIMEEHEZER  BER
generally accompanying a shareholding of between B H20% — 50%1% = % 2 R o B
20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments ERARENERGIEAR - 7
in associate companies are accounted for using TG AR AN FERR o AREE @EAM /NS

the equity method of accounting and are initially
recognised at cost. The Group’s investment in

ZREBREBREHNZEE (4
BRI REHDRERR) BRKaERA

associate companies includes goodwill (net of R R EEE BRI EER
any accumulated impairment loss) identified on AW SR ANER - B ER R

acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associate companies’
post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised
in the consolidated income statement, and its

BZEBHUANEREAER - KE
FEEEREBERA ZWERREER
i:“%bﬂ;ﬁ Dﬂﬁ& °

WASEEGE-—RBERBZEBE
EFRHNEBERNZBE QAR 2
o B (A H A A IR R R R

share of post-acquisition movements in reserves AEB T2 BERHE—DEE - BKRIFE
is recognised in reserves. The cumulative AEEBEREE R RAERFRE
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against HATER o

the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate
company equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate company, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate company.
Unrealised gains on transactions between the
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BRRREERRAT —FZNFFH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt % R MO

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHBERBE (&)

(Continued)

2.3 Consolidation (Continued) 23 &RE (&)

(c) Associate companies (Continued)

Group and its associate companies are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associate
companies. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associate companies have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

2.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. Cost may also includes transfers from equity
of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges
of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged in the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight line method to allocate
their costs or revalued amounts to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements 5 years
Machinery and equipment 5 - 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

) HZLNFE] (&)

AEEBEBERRZARHZKR
BERWAREERBE A ARER
B RERXZREMERE
EREZER BAREREBERT
TUAHE - BERAR ZEFEEKE
BEERELRE L/{Eﬁf%éﬁizl»‘%l
RAZBER - -

24 Y¥ - BMERRE

ME - BEMRERE LKA RITET
- ERRABRWIEZERERRENA
ZRX e RATNAIBREEETEEE
BMUINERBERELREZAERER
mE ST E A 2 (R EEE -

HERARBERZIAR B REE
ERm BRI RERAANKE  MZBEEZ
XAARBERI SERTER - T REEEEZK
HESRRAASBLEE (RER) - BEE
By 2 BREEE T LA - PRE HMt i
ERREEEEZMBBHARBRR
T3 e

FEDRME  BERRE G AIE
P HR A B AROA I 8H H A AR R AHRUE
BREMSRESE  HFEFRQOT :

HEHRE 5%
23 N 5R A 5-104F
RE BeE
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Bt % | R K

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

24

2.5

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.5).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within other (losses)/gains — net, in the
consolidated income statement. When revalued assets
are sold, the amounts included in other reserves are
transferred to retained earnings.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associated
companies and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not
yet available for use are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale.
The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

@

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial
asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short
term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for
trading unless they are designated as hedges.
Assets in this category are classified as current
assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for maturities
greater than 12 months after the balance sheet
date. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables comprised
“trade and other receivables” and “cash and cash
equivalents” in the balance sheet (Notes 2.8 and
2.9).

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are
non-derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless management intends to dispose of
the investment within 12 months of the balance
sheet date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHBERBE (&)

(Continued)

26 SREE (&)

2.6 Financial assets (Continued)

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date. The date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised
at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the “financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss” category are recognised in the period in which
they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at
par value through profit or loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement when the Group’s right
to receive payment is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in a foreign currency and classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of
the security and other changes in the carrying amount
of the security. The translation differences on monetary
securities are recognised in profit or loss; translation
differences on non-monetary securities are recognised
in equity. Changes in the fair value of monetary and
non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale
are recognised in equity.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the consolidated
income statement as “gains and losses from investment
securities”.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2. RS BRUE &)

26 SREE (&)

2.6 Financial assets (Continued)

68

Interests on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method are recognised
in the income statement as part of other income.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the consolidated income statement as
part of other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

The fair values of quoted investments are based
on current bid prices. If the market for a financial
asset is not active (and for unlisted securities), the
Group established fair value by using valuation
techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s
length transactions, reference to other instruments
that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis, and option pricing models, making maximum
use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on
entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets are impaired. In the
case of equity securities classified as available-for-sale,
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is considered as an indicator
that the securities are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss (measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss) is removed from equity
and recognised in the consolidated income statement.
Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated
income statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the consolidated income statement.
Impairment testing of trade receivables is described
in (Note 2.6).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2. RS BRUE &)

2.7 Work-in-progress 27 E®EG

Work-in-progress is stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs of
purchase and, where applicable, cost of development
including costs that have been incurred for the provision
of pharmaceutical application, registration and testing
services, is calculated using the first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Where the outcome of a pharmaceutical development
and clinical research contract or service can be
estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract
activity at the balance sheet date, as measured by
the proportion that contract costs incurred for work
performed to date bear to the total contract costs
or the proportion that contract revenue billed or
recognised for work performed to date bear to the
total contract sums, whichever is the lower, except
where this would not be representative of the stage
of completion.

Where the outcome of a contract or service cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to
the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable
that they will be recoverable. Contract costs are
recognised as expenses in the period in which they
are incurred.

When it is probable that the total contract costs will
exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is

recognised as an expense immediately.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8

2.9

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision
for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade
and other receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able
to collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of receivables. Significant financial difficulties
of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or
delinquency in payments are considered indicators that
the receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision
is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the assets is reduced through the
use of an allowance account, and the amount of loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement
within “administrative expenses”. When a receivable
is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for receivables. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated income
statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less, and bank overdrafts.

2.10 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

2.12 Convertible bonds

Conversion options that are not settled by the exchange
of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for
a fixed number of equity instruments are recognised
as financial instruments carried at fair value through
profit or loss. On initial recognition, the fair value of
the conversion option component is determined using
an option-pricing model; and this amount is carried as
a derivative liability until extinguished on conversion
or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is
allocated to the liability component and is carried as a
liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished
on conversion or redemption. In subsequent periods,
the derivative component is measured at fair value with
gains and losses recognised in the income statement

until extinguished on conversion or redemption.
2.13 Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where
the Company and its subsidiaries and associated
companies operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESHBERBE (&)

(Continued)

2I3EHAEBRRIELEREHR (&)

2.13 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

72

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associated companies, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

2.14 Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations

The Group participates in various defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes. A defined
contribution plan is a retirement benefit scheme
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The schemes are generally
funded through payments to government authorities
or trustee-administered funds. The Group pays
contributions on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contribution
for post-retirement benefits beyond these fixed
contributions. The contributions are recognised
as employment costs when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.14 Employee benefits (Continued)
(b) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(c) Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted, excluding the impact of
any non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets). Non-market
vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to
vest. At each balance sheet date, the entity revises
its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest. It recognises the impact of the
revision of original estimates, if any, in the income
statement with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium when
the options are exercised.

2.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are
not recognised for future operating losses.
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(Continued)

215848 (&)

2.15 Provisions (Continued)

74

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as

interest expense.

2.16 Revenues

Revenues from transfer of new drug development and
formulation data are recognised upon transfer of risks
and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides
with the time when the compound and data are

delivered to customers.

Revenues from contracted research and development,
pharmaceutical application, registration and testing
services are recognised to the extent of the milestone
payments earned in accordance with the applicable
performance requirements and contractual terms
and, where appropriate, as the related costs are
incurred. Payments received that are related to future
performance are deferred and recorded as revenues as
they are earned over the specified future performance

periods.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESHBERBE (&)

(Continued)

2.16 Revenues (Continued) 216 WA (&)

Subject to the terms as stated in the technology
transfer agreements and the buyers’ success in
commercialisation of the products to which the
technology transferred is applied, the Group may
receive additional royalty income or profit sharing
income in the future. Should there be any royalty
income or sharing of profit, they will be recognised
when the right to receive the income is established.

Service income is recognised when services are

provided.

Royalty income on drugs produced by third parties
using the Group’s drug technology is recognised when
the right to receive is established.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the interest rate applicable.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to

receive payment is established.

2.17 Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the balance sheet
initially when there is reasonable assurance that they
will be received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate
the Group for expenses incurred are recognised in
income statement on a systemic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted in arriving at the carrying amount of the
asset and consequently are recognised in profit or loss
over the useful life of the asset.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2. TESHBRUE &)

2.18 New technology development costs 2.18 37 25 & 1 1l B 8% A AN

76

Expenditure on research activities on new drug
technology is recognised as an expense in the period
in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated asset arising from new drug
technology development expenditure is recognised
only if it is anticipated that the development costs
incurred on a clearly-defined project will be recovered
through future commercial activity. The resultant asset
is amortised on a straight line basis over its useful life.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can
be recognised, new drug technology development
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period
in which it is incurred.

2.19 Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a

straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.20 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity holders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s equity holders or directors,
where appropriate.

HMBEmMmBMZARRASTRELEHANER
B -

EEBEREERECRBEEEZHAEMNX
AiGBEBARBFEEHRE ZBERLT -
TEERHM ERRMAERXELZA
MELEE EEZEEREAFERF
M EARRHEE - WA BAMELEL
BER THER - RIS SRR
MEEL ZHRER /I -

219708 (EEHSE)

A E A 2 = 2 A0 B A0 [ 3R e
HEARE Mo BEREEHEE - RE
LEME XN 2R (F0kr B HHEAWER
ZEMERBEER) REEMAAERERE
BRI -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt % | R K

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of

financial risks: market risk (including foreign currency

risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate risk and

price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s

overall risk management program focuses on the

unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to

minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s

financial performance.

(a) Market risk

(i)

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency
risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to HKD, United States
Dollars (“USD”) and Swiss Franc (“CHF”).
Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities. In addition, the conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject
to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with
most of the transactions denominated and
settled in RMB. Foreign exchange risk also
arises from certain financial assets and
convertible bonds which are denominated in
HKD, USD and CHF. The Group currently does
not hedge its foreign exchange exposure.

At 31st December 2008, if HKD, USD or CHF
had weakened/strengthened by 1% against
Renminbi with all other variables held constant,
post-tax loss or profit for the year would have
been RMB1,104,831 (2007: RMB1,869,539)
higher/lower.

3.

B 7 B B i B
3.1 BIEEREKREE

SEEE—FRINMBRERR - mHERR (2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %

* M =

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

The Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets and liabilities as at year end. The
directors are of the opinion that the Group
does not exposure to any cash flow and fair
value interest rate risks and no sensitivity

analysis is performed.

Price risks

The Group is exposed to securities price risk
because investments held by the Group are
classified on the consolidated balance sheet
either as available-for-sale or at fair value
through profit or loss. The Group has not
mitigated its price risk arising from investments

in securities financial assets.

For the Group’s investments that are publicly
traded, the fair value is determined with
reference to quoted market prices. For the
Group’s investments that are not publicly
traded, the Group uses its judgement to select
a variety of methods and make assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the balance sheet date.

3.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(iii) Price risks (Continued)

At 31st December 2008, if the market prices of

3. MBEARER &)
31 MBEBEER (&)

@) m5mEE (&)

3. EBXRR (&)

these securities financial assets had increased/ /\ﬁ@“ SNE ﬁu%*ﬂ =B
decreased by 1% with all other variables held ,EE/TE% % ° $’$ B AN EF 1%
constant, Group’s post-tax profit for the year M A LA 2
ended would have been changed as follows:
2008 2007
—EEN\F —TETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTT
Post-tax profit increase/(decrease) G- NEpad = A GN Y
— Market prices increased by 1% — M{ELHR1% 365 393
— Market prices decreased by 1% —METEK1% (365) (893)

(b) Credit risk

(b) 1EHER

Credit risk arises from trade receivables and bank
balances.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade receivables.

For the sales of products to third party customers,
there is a concentration of credit risk with respect
to trade receivables as the largest five customers
contribute around 68% of the balance. The Group
has policies in place to ensure that credit is only
granted to customers with an appropriate credit
history and a good reputation. The exposure to
credit risk is closely monitored on an ongoing
basis. The directors are of the opinion that the
credit risk is low as history of default in payment
from the customers is rare.

ERER
TTEREE o
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit rating

agencies.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances. The
liquidity of the Group is adequately managed and
monitored by maintaining sufficient cash, which is
available to meet its continuous operational needs.
In the opinion of the directors, the Group does not
have any significant liquidity risk.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows.

MBERER (@)
31 MBEBER (&)

(b) 1=AmEE (&)

mBEENERREREAERN K
ST RBERERAFERERES
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EREARSEANEEREENERRE
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.

MBERER (@)
31 MBEBER (&)

(c) nmEtERE (&)

Group ZN S
At 31st December 2008
R=BENE+=A=t-H

Less than Between 1 Between 2
1year and2years and>5 years Total
PE 1-25% 2-5% At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTR ARBTR AR%TxR
Convertible bonds A E 5 - - 65,785 65,785
Other payables and accruals H e T R AR R 8,161 - - 8,161

At 31st December 2007
RZEE+F+-A=1+—H

Lessthan  Between1  Between 2
1year and?2years and 5 years Total
N 1-26 2-5% At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETxR
Borrowings B 3 - - g
Convertible bonds EBRES - - 95,936 95,936
Trade payables ENE S 285 - - 285
Other payables and accruals H e T R B BR R 5,237 - - 5,237
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MBEBERE &)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BEEREE (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) () wEIERELE (&)
Company PN
At 31st December 2008

R-EBENF+=-A=t—H
Less than Between 1 Between 2

1year and2years and>5 years Total
NME 1-2f 2-5%F a5t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®TR ARTR AR®TR

Convertible bonds AIERES - - 65,785 65,785
Other payables and accruals H e T R AR R 3,715 - - 3,715

At 31st December 2007
R-ZBZ+E+-A=1T—H
Lessthan  Between 1  Between 2
1year and?2years and 5 years Total
INSES 1-2% 2-5%F Ch
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AR%TRH

Borrowings fE% 3 - - 3
Convertible bonds AIERES - - 95,936 95,936
Other payables and accruals HibEN TR EAERER 114 - - 114
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns to the shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group represents equity
attributable to equity holder of the Group, comprising
issued share capital and retained earnings.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to the
shareholder or issue new shares.

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as trading and available-for-sale
securities) is based on quoted market prices on the
balance sheet date. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the Group is the current
bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of
methods and makes assumptions that are based on
market conditions existing at each balance sheet date.
Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments are used for long-term debts.

The carrying value less impairment provision of
trade receivables and payables are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values. The fair value of
financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at
the current market interest rate that is available to the
Group for similar financial instruments.

3.

B ERER (&)

3.2

3.3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 4, EESFHETT R ¥

84

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(a) Impairment of intangible assets

The Group performs annual tests on whether there has
been impairment of intangible assets in accordance
with the accounting policy stated. The recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units are determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates and assumptions made by
management on the future operation of the business,
pre-tax discount rates, and other assumptions

underlying the value-in-use calculations.

(b) Estimation of provision for impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables
based on an assessment of the collectability of trade
and other receivables. Provisions for impairment are
applied to trade and other receivables where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of doubtful
debts requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of receivables and doubtful debt expense in

the period in which such estimate is changed.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Net realisable value of work-in-progress

Provision for slowing-moving work-in-progress is made
based on the ageing and accomplishment of certain
milestone stage such as clinical studies permit during
the process of development. The assessment of the
provision amount required involving management
judgement and estimates. Where the actual outcome
or expectation in future is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the carrying
value of work-in-progress and provision charge/
write-back in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. It
could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitor actions in response to
competition within the industry. Management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are
less than previously estimated lives, or it will write-off
or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

4. EERETHETTRAE (&)

(c)

(d)

ERFBUTERFE
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 EHEWAKBHA
Breakdown of the revenue from all services is as follows: W ARG -
2008 2007
—BENF —TTHEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Analysis of revenue by category L ONE:|
Transfer to technology for new g K ¥ R R T s R A

drugs and new drugs development 4,204 595
Contracted pharmaceutical development G 4y B 2% B S IR A 55

services and clinical research services BRAGUTA — 2N &= B B4l

associated with technology

transferred by the Group 11,476 17,367
Contracted pharmaceutical development & 4 B 2% B G IR A 55

services and clinical research BRASUTA — FEA S B 1l

services not associated with

technology transferred by the Group 19,743 18,616
Import registration services # O AR S U A 554 28
Royalty income R B RA 2,749 1,369
Sales of active pharmaceutical SHE B BB X 7 EE s A

ingredients products 460 754

39,186 38,729

Turnover and contribution to profit from operations by TREAEEBBIONEFENERBREANE
segment has not been presented as over 90% of the BREQUA SRR - 95k B A Bz S BEAf 3% - 5
Group's turnover was derived from the pharmaceutical fitt - REBARBIE - MEMAEERILMESE
research and development, registration, application and TMIRAHRE - AW KRZFNE ST o

testing in the PRC and all assets were located in the PRC
for both years.
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6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — GROUP AND 6. ¥ HERRE-FEEREA
THE COMPANY Gl
(a) Group (@) &=&E
Machinery
Leasehold and
improvement equipment Motor vehicles Total
HERE HERRE AE a5t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARET:
At 1st January 2007 R-ZEt&-H-A
Cost H#N 2,446 9,573 1,074 13,093
Accumulated depreciation ZEiE (1,505) (4,489 (337) (6,331)
Net book amount RERE 941 5,084 787 6,762
Year ended 31st December 2007 RZZZt&E+-HA=1-H
Opening net book amount RE = E R 941 5,084 737 6,762
Additions ARERSE N 5,811 468 - 6,279
Disposals KER D - (5) = (5)
Depreciation nE (899) (838) (32) (1,769)
Closing net book amount EEFEARAE 5,853 4,709 705 11,267
At 31st December 2007 RZBBLFE+-A=+-H
Cost EEEERE 8,257 10,027 1,074 19,358
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (2,404) (5,318) (369) (8,091)
Net book amount ElE &R E 5,853 4,709 705 11,267
Year ended 31st December 2008 R-EENF+-A=1-H
Opening net book amount REFEBE 5,853 4,709 705 11,267
Additions ARERIEN 288 1,981 118 2,387
Disposals KER D (163) (60) (182) (405)
Depreciation nE (814) (1,082) (433) (2,329)
Closing net book amount EmFERRAE 5,164 5,548 208 10,920
At 31st December 2008 R-ZEZNF+=A=1+—H
Cost B A 7,460 11,857 1,010 20,327
Accumulated depreciation Z:ITE (2,296) (6,309) (802) (9,407)
Net book amount RHFE 5,164 5,548 208 10,920

Depreciation expense of approximately RMB1,600,000
(2007: RMB1,419,000) has been charged in “cost of
goods sold” and approximately of RMB729,000 (2007:
RMB350,000) in “administrative expenses”.

WEEZEBH L ARE1,600,000 (ZFEZF+
£ AR #1,419,000) £ [$5 & &k 2| 7
Y MARBET29,000 (ZZEZHF : ARKE

350,000) £ [EEER | F3I% -
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6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — GROUP AND 6. ¥ HERRE-FTEEREA

THE COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Company

A (&)

(b) AT

Machinery and

equipment
WeERBE
RMB’000
AR¥T T
At 1st January 2007 R=-BZE+HE—H—H
Cost [N 75
Accumulated depreciation 25 E (54)
Net book amount AREVFE 21
Year ended 31st December 2007 R-ZEZELHF+-A=+—H
Opening net book amount BREVFEHVIAREE 21
Depreciation e (15)
Closing net book amount AR FHE B R AR 6
At 31st December 2007 R=-ZEZtHF+=-A=+—H
Cost BEEERE 75
Accumulated depreciation ZEtine (69)
Net book amount EEEEFE 6
Year ended 31st December 2008 R-ZEENF+ZA=1+-—H
Opening net book amount SR FE B VIR 6
Disposals ZNHR R (6)
Closing net book amount BREHEHIRERER -

At 31st December 2008

R-ZEENF+=-A=1+—H

Cost B AR -
Accumulated depreciation 2 E -
Net book amount IREDFE =
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B % R KO

7. NEW DRUGS TECHNOLOGY - GROUP 7. BRI — XEE
RMB’000
AREEF T
At 1st January 2007 R=-BZE+HE—H—H
Cost [N 9,365
Accumulated amortisation and impairment RETEESE RORE (1,258)
Net book amount R FE 8,107
Year ended 31st December 2007 R-EZE+LHF+=-A=+—H
Opening net book amount AR B BV RR 8,107
Additions ANERIE AR =
Amortisation charge 7N HAE 54 (1,149)
Closing net book amount AR FHE B R EARE 6,958
At 31st December 2007 R=-ZBZELtF+=-A=+—H
Cost BN 9,365
Accumulated amortisation and impairment R RORE (2,407)
Net book amount BRHEFE 6,958
Year ended 31st December 2008 R-ZEENF+-A=1+—H
Opening net book amount BRI FHE BRI AR 6,958
Additions N HR I HNEE 12,693
Impairment loss NERRE R (7,465)
Amortisation charge NI (1,741)
Closing net book amount AR SHE B R AR 10,445
At 31st December 2008 R=ZBENF+=-A=+—H
Cost AR 22,058
Accumulated amortisation R EESE (11,613)
Net book amount BRENF(E 10,445

The intangible assets included above have finite useful
lives, over which the assets are amortised. The amortisation
period for development costs incurred on the Group’s new

drugs technology is five years, Details of critical accounting

estimates were set out in Note 4(a).

ERMIIZEBEERGRERFY AN
B IR NS o AR BT ERMATS &
BRAEBHBRALE  FREZEGFH
itz FEBER M E4(a) °
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8. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY 8. MEBARIER — &2QF
2008 2007
—EENF —EELHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
Unlisted shares, at cost JE ETIR — AN 30,374 30,374
Amounts due from subsidiaries S NG ] 45,002 37,043
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN ENGIE ] - (2,674)
75,376 64,743

The cost of the unlisted shares is based on the book value
of the underlying net assets of the subsidiaries attributable
to the Group on the date of the Group Reorganisation.

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms. The
amounts will not be repayable within twelve months from
the balance sheet date. Accordingly, the amounts are

shown as non-current.

FELETRODZRATDEAEEREEEHRA
HiREH B AR EEEHEZREENHE -

FEY (FE) B AR RIAREER - 28
MEBETEEESRR AHEREIEREE
Eart —EAREE - Bit - BEENAFE
MENZT



VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED  Annual Report 2008

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt % R KM

8. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY 8. MEBARIER — &AQTF (&)
(Continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at ARBRZEZENFE+ZA=1T—HZEE
31st December 2008 are as follows: WEBARFBNT :

Particulars of

issued share capital/
registered capital
Name Place of incorporation Principal activities BRITRE/ Interest held
NGRS ik TEREEK ZEMEAR FribfE s
(Note (a))
(F7E(@))
Shares directly held by the Company:
ERAREESERD
Venturepharm British Virgin Islands Investment holding US$100 100%
Laboratories (BVI) (“BVI") i & 100% 7T
Limited (“VP (BVI)")™ RERZAES ([BVI])
Venovo Pharma US Inc.® British Virgin Islands Investment holding US$1 100%
(“BVI") BRI E e
RS ([BVI])
Shares/investments indirectly held by the Company:
EARBEESERG (RRE)
Beijing Dezhong VP Beijing, the PRC The research and development RMB7,154,420 94.512%
Technology Development 2Tl of new drug preparation,  AR¥7,154,4207C
Co Ltd® raw materials,
TREREE supplementary
sy TFRERR AP materials) and

biodrugs; technological
transfer and services
WL

HESIE - mAMR
BHBRM KL

(L T 28 R 2N o )

R EEm ;

AR MR

91



BRRREERRAT —FTNFFH
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Bt 3% R KO

8. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY 8. B ARIHER — &KATF (&)
(Continued)

Particulars of
issued share capital/
registered capital

Name Place of incorporation Principal activities ERITRAR Interest held
NEEE o {26 TEREEK EMER FribfE s
(Note (a))
(BtzE(a)

Shares/investments indirectly held by the Company: (Continued)
ERAFEERERD (RRE) : (&

Venturepharm Life Science Hong Kong, the PRC  Inactive HK$10,000 100%
Capital Limited® REEB | 10,0007 7T
BRABRBREARAF

Hanzhong Venturepharm Hanzhong, Sales and manufacturing of US$600,000 51%
Pharm-Chemical the PRC active pharmaceutical 600,000%€ 7T
Company Limited® R EH ingredients products

EPEEBELTIARAA HERBEERER KD ER

VPSCRO Group Inc!" British Virgin Islands Inactive US$780 100%

B RS g 780%7T

Hainan Sinican Hainan, the PRC The research, development US$360,000 100%
Bio-labs Limited® el and production of drugs, 360,00057T

BrEERERARC natural drugs and

synthetic drugs;
technological transfer
of and services for the
research and development
of biodrugs, natural drugs
and synthetic drugs;
pharmacodynamic and
clinical research of drugs
Wt - s R ERm
AREmRAKER
WG E
AREMRAKERLZ
B KR
B 7 B RERIRT A
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Bt % | R K

8. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY

8. MEARERE - ARQF (&)

(Continued)
Particulars of
issued share capital/
registered capital
Name Place of incorporation Principal activities BRTRAR, Interest held
NGIECE o i 3t TEREEK & A Frit s
(Note (a))
(PH5E(a))
Shares/investments indirectly held by the Company: (Continued)
EARBEESERG (RRE) : (&
Beijing Venture-Sunshine Beijing, the PRC The research development RMB1,655,747 100%
Pharmaceutical Technology R EldL R and production of drugs, A R¥#1,655,7477T
Co., Ltd (“V Biopharm”)@ gatural tdruhgs ?nq s*nthehc
B, rugs; technologica
jt/?\%i%#\%% transfer of and services
MEBRAFY for the research and
development of biodrugs,
natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; pharmacodynamic
and clinical research of
drugs
MR FEREE
B - RAEEm
RERK%Em : HRK
FREEMZEmR
AR R A K Em
Bt R R
B 2 BT R ER IR AT
Beijing New Dezhong-Venture  Beijing, the PRC The research, development US$200,000 100%

Pharmaceutical Technology A E{t R
Development Co., Ltd®
TR ERERE

REER AR

and production of new
drugs, natural drugs,
and synthetic drugs;

technological transfer of and

services for research and
development of biodrugs,
natural drugs and synthetic
drugs, pharmacodynamic
and clinical research of
drugs

MR P REERED
AINBEm R B P B
MERFAEEZEm
AINBEm KRB A B
iR R R
B 7 BN R BRI AT

200,00037T
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Bt % | R K

8. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY

8. MEARERE - ARQF (&)

(Continued)
Particulars of
issued share capital/
registered capital
Name Place of incorporation Principal activities BRITRE Interest held
NGRS EEdis ok TEREEK HRER Frit s
(Note (a))
(BI3E(@)
Shares/investments indirectly held by the Company: (Continued)
FAREERFERG (BKRE) : (&)
Beijing Venture-Sun Beijing, the PRC The research development US$200,000 100%
Medical Technlogy REE R and production of drugs, 200,000 7T
Co., Ltd® natural drugs and synthetic
tREZGREE drugs; technological
BTER A A transfer of and services
for the research and
development of biodrugs,
natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; pharmacodynamic
and clinical research of
drugs
M - FE R AEERED
AIREEm B P B
WS Ly
AIREEm KA P B
Bfoes s kR
B 7 BT K BRI 5T
Taizhou Venturepharm Taizhou, the PRC The research development RMB1,000,000 100%

Medicine Sci Tech
Co., Ltd®
FNE2BERBERATO

94

B2

and production of drugs, 1,000,000% T
natural drugs and synthetic

drugs; technological

transfer of and services

for the research and

development of biodrugs,

natural drugs and synthetic

drugs; pharmacodynamic

and clinical research of

drugs

W REREESEMD -

AABER R A KER
MR RFAZEYEER -
AREmMRAEKERLZ
o R R

B 7 BRI K BRI AT
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Bt % | R K

8.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY
(Continued)

Remark:

Not required to be audited in country of incorporation.

Statutory financial statements being audited by 1t 5K B H A €560
ES 3

Statutory financial statements being audited by /R X {E12E & 5D
ES 3

Statutory financial statements being audited by Shaanxi Qinyue
Certified Public Accountants Inc BREEZ= 4078 [R = (F & 5+ B4

No audited accounts in country of incorporation as it is inactive and
dormant.

The Group held major representation of the board of directors in this
company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the
end of the year or any time during the year.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP

8. MEAGER - ARQF (&)

() EMERERE: -
() ERMERRGIFAENA A B R -

@) EEMBRREEE NGRS REBAET
@) EEFBBREROARNDBERE TS EBAE

(6) MNELE  EMEAEREFEIER -

GEE

@ EREEZATZEEEFEEASBEL -

(b) MY 2 2 A4 o T A 4 P £ B 444
REEES -

9. WEARES - AEE

2008 2007

—EEN\F —TTLF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREET T

At 1st January R—H—H 833 3,235
Disposal of investment HERE - (2,235)
Impairment of investment KA A - (167)
Reclassified as investment held for resale E#F DA AR BEKRE (833) -
At 31st December RF=H=5F—H - 833
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9.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE — GROUP (Continued)

Details of the Group’s associate at 31st December 2008,

9. MEARER - &A&EE (&)

HIE-ZZNFFT_A=+—H HARF

which is held indirectly by the Company, are as follows: MERE ASEBEQARFBEOT ¢
Particulars
of issued Place of
Name shares held incorporation Attributable to the Group
=18 FREFEATIRG o fif 3t B AEBEEMN Interest
Assets Liabilities  Revenues Profit held
BE =R & wmAH  EEER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 %
ARBTT ARBTRT AR®BTRT ARBTT
2008
Nova Derm Inc. British Virgin 2,081 (2,081) - - 40%
Islands (“BVI”)
RERELAS
(rsvil)
Particulars
of issued Place of
Name shares held incorporation Attributable to the Group
475 FrssTmn s 754 [ R Interest
Assets  Liabilities Revenues Profit held
BE afE Wezs wA EIEER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 %
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
2007
Nova Derm Inc. British Virgin 2,081 (2,081) — — 40%
Islands (“BVI”)
EERIES

(rsvil)
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9. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP (Continued)

The investment in an associate has been reclassified to

investment held for resale as at 31st December 2008

(note 15).

On 1st November 2008, the Company decided to dispose

of its investment in Nova Derm Inc. in which the Company
holds 40% equity interests. As at 11st November 2008,
the negotiation for the disposal was in progress and

the investment was classified as an investment held for

resale. The disposal was in 2009 with a selling price of

9.

MEBLREDR - A58 (&)

ABRBREEN_ZFTNF+_A=+—HE
FORATBERE (HFE15) -

RZEBEZENF+—A—H ARRPRATHE
H7ENova Derm Inc.FT{540% & Az o B
—ETNF+—A—B HENKHET
FZBREEFHIEAVBERE - 28
BREECR-_TETNFUAARS77,1977LB
BHE -

RMB877,197.
2008 2007
—EENF —EELHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
Unlisted investment at cost JE EIRE AN - 833
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 3% R MO

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY — GROUP
AND THE COMPANY

10, R T AP - AEBERAKQF

Group AEE
Assets at fair
value through
Loans and  profit or loss
receivables REM% Total
BERR B SREE a5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR%Tr ARETET
Assets as per consolidated balance sheet #HZEEEEBREE
31st December 2008 R-ZBENEF
t=ZA=+—H
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 BR SRFN E i
(excluding prepayments) FEMGR (P TEMERFKR)
(Note 13) (PfF5E13) 28,139 - 28,139
Financial assets at fair value through RECREE
profit or loss (Note 15) (PfIzE15) - 46,684 46,684
Cash and cash equivalent ReERBEEEEY
(Note 16) (PffzE16) 6,711 - 6,711
Total EEr 34,850 46,684 81,534
31st December 2007 RZTETLF
+=ZA=+—H
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 BR AN E A
(excluding prepayments) JEWGR (R ETBNERF)
(Note 13) (FffzE13) 57,799 = 57,799
Financial assets at fair value through RPUESREE
profit or loss (Note 15) (FffzE15) - 72,409 72,409
Cash and cash equivalent BeRIBESHEY
(Note 16) (FfizE16) 30,803 = 30,803
Total = 88,602 72,409 161,011
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY — GROUP

AND THE COMPANY (Continued)

Group (Continued)

10, €M T AP — XEERADQTE (£)

M (&)

Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

Hib S meE &
[=F: §Z)5%
RMB’000
ARBTIT
Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet LEEEEERAE
31st December 2008 R=-BEBNF+=-A=+-—H
Borrowing excluding finance lease liabilities BR(TEMERE) 65,785
Trade and other payables FETE 5 BR SR % LA FE AT 5K 8,161
Total 5=t 73,946
31st December 2007 RZETZLF+ZA=+—H
Borrowing excluding finance lease liabilities AR (TERERSE) 95,936
Trade and other payables FE B 5 BR R EL A FE 5 5K 5,622
Total EEr 101,458
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - GROUP 10. SR T BB — AEBRARQT (&)

AND THE COMPANY (Continued)

Company Z A
Assets at fair
Loans and value through
receivables  profit or loss Total
RS
BERRER TRIEE &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT ARETT
Assets as per consolidated balance sheet #ZSEEEEBREE
31st December 2008 R=ZZNF
+=A=+—H
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 BRI A
(excluding prepayments) FEMER (R ETERERFR) 5,148 - 5,148
Financial assets at fair value through REECRHEE
profit or loss (Note 15) (Pf5E15) - 45,851 45,851
Cash and cash equivalent ReRBEEEEY
(Note 16) (FffzE16) 3,316 - 3,316
Total aEr 8,464 45,851 54,315
31st December 2007 RZETLF
+=ZA=+—H
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 BR R S H A
(excluding prepayments) FEMER (R ETERERFK) 1,476 - 1,476
Financial assets at fair value through RECREE
profit or loss (Note 15) (Pff5E15) - 72,409 72,409
Cash and cash equivalent RERBFEEFEY
(Note 16) (PfffzE16) 17,193 = 17,193
Total EEr 18,669 72,409 91,078
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY — GROUP

AND THE COMPANY (Continued)

Company (Continued)

Y NNCINE-P)

10, €M T AP — XEERADQTE (£)

Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

HihomaE
© # 85 B AR
RMB’000
ARETTT
Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet LELEEEERAE
31st December 2008 R=ZBENF+=-A=+—H
Borrowing excluding finance lease liabilities BR(TERERE) 65,785
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 BR SR % LA FE AT 5k 3,715
Total =0 69,500
31st December 2007 RZETZLF+ZA=+—H
Borrowing excluding finance lease liabilities AR (TERERSE) 95,936
Trade and other payables FE B 5 BR 3R EL A FE 5 5k 114
Total A&t 96,050
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11. WORK-IN-PROGRESS - GROUP 1. 585 — 456
2008 2007
—BENE et S
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTTT

Work in progress e
— contracted (Note (a)) — BET4 (KisE (@) 16,725 43,521

Work-in-progress ERS
- not-contracted (Note (b)) — RETH4Y (Bi7E(b)) 39,561 28,689
Allowance for work-in-progress B A - (5,707)
56,286 66,503

(@) The balance represents the project costs incurred
for the contracted research and development,
pharmaceutical application, registration and testing
services, but have not met the extent of the milestone
payments earned in accordance with the applicable

performance requirements and contractual terms.

(b) The balance comprises of development costs incurred
with the intention of outright sales as technology
transfer but have not been contracted.

FLERIECD RO A - BB
Aot AR EE ZBERAE
HER R R R Z 2 E R B SR A B RAR
E 2R AR IR B EE TR -

ZAERERESRMEBRERALEZR
TR - BRARRIZAEH °
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BB R RMW

12. TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP

I:EH:

The fair value of trade receivables are as follows:

12. ERE SRR — A& H

R E ZBEROAAEBERNT

2008 2007

—EBEN\F —TTEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBTT

Trade receivables FEYE 5 BRI 32,692 43,251
Less: provision for impairment i EERRES

of receivables (19,492) (12,530)

Trade receivables — net FENE ZRRFRE 13,200 30,721

The Group allows an average credit period of 90 days to its
trade customers. As 31st December 2008 and 2007, the
ageing of the trade receivables were as follows:

£ A HEFIRHOORM & AMIR - &=
TEN\F (CFTLF) FH-A=t-8

FEWE IR FRER DT -

2008 2007

—EENF —TTLF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARETTT

1-30 days 1-30K 324 14,815
31-60 days 31 -60K - 2,676
61-90 days 61-90K - 4,353
91-180 days 91-180K - -
Over 180 days Hi@180K 12,876 8,877
13,200 30,721

As at 31st December 2008,

receivables of

RMB12,876,000 (2007: RMB8,877,000) were past due

but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent

customers for whom there is no recent history of default.

HIE—ZTZTZNF+_A=+—H BKEZES
R R AR#12,876,000 (ZZTZTLF ¢ A
R#8,877,000) B @B RIZZREM - &
LR TS 2K B 2 B AR B B R i 2 3G 85 HY

BIUEP o
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Bt % ® xR K

I:EH:

12. TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP (Continued)

These customers have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable. The Group does not held any collateral
over these balances. The ageing analysis of these trade
receivables is as follows:

12. ERE SRR — AK£8 (&)

HERUAANKER  BREERRARANE
HREREE BRAELEEFHNEREER
BEANZ BRFELHEEDIWD - A
SEELERKESREROERR - RED
Mo

2008 2007

—SENE T

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTFRT  ARMTR

Over 180 days HE3E180K 12,876 8,877

As of 31st December 2008, trade receivables of
RMB19,492,000 (2007: RMB12,530,000) were impaired
and provided for. The amount of the provision was
RMB19,492,000 as at 31st December 2008 (2007:
RMB12,530,000). The individually impaired receivables
mainly related to customers, which are in unexpected
difficult economic situations. It was assessed that a portion
of the receivables is expected to be recovered. The ageing
of these receivables is as follows:

HIE—"ZZNF+_A=+—H BKEZSH
R AR%19,492,000 (ZZZT£F : A
R #12,530,000) 5H2 T EEH - HME%E
HHEE A ARYE19,492,000 (Z T L& :
AR #12,530,000) - BEREEKE S K
REEREREBERZINEEREZR
P TEEE D FEULE 5 AR A AR [E - R
B SRR IOT

2008 2007

—EEN\F BT 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Over 180 days #8180 days 12,876 8,877
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12. TRADE RECEIVABLES — GROUP (Continued) 12. BWE SRR — K8 (@)
Movement on the Group’s provision for impairment of trade FEUE ZRFUBEEEZEE T

receivables are as follow:

2008 2007
—SENE  STTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBETTT

At 1st January n—A—H 12,530 12,530
Provision for receivable impairment FEUE 5 BR BURBE 221 19,492 =
Bad debt written off FEW B 5 BR SR SH AR (12,530) -
At 31st December R+=—A=+—H 19,492 12,530
The other classes within trade receivables do not contain FEWE ZEFNEMER TS EREERE °

impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting MASRERE  ffEEZSENERRERE A E
date is the carrying value of each class of receivables MpEINE SRR REEE - ANEE I A F
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral K mIERIER -
as security.

13. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 13. BMNRR  HERHEMERR

RECEIVABLES - GROUP

The prepayments, deposits and other receivables are as TR - 12 R EMEWERRAL T -
follows:
2008 2007
—EENF —FELF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETT ARBTTT

Prepayments TETBR K 19,265 7,763
Deposits e - 317
Other receivables H A FE UK 15,170 26,761
Total &t 34,435 34,841
The carrying amounts of prepayments, deposits and other AR - 2e R H A E W FRIE 2 BREE R

receivables approximate their fair values. HRATEREE ° 105
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Bt 3% R KO

14. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES -
GROUP AND THE COMPANY

Details of the amounts due from related companies are

14. BB A RIE - ARERAQF

JE U BA RS N R RIRRRAR AN TS

as follows:
Group Company
rEE RAFE
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EEN\E ZTTLF —BENE ZTTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR ARBTRT AR%®TR ARBTT
Name of companies YNCIEE
Sanmenxia Sinoway Pharmaceutical =PIl E# # - 636 - -
Co., Ltd (“Sinoway Pharmaceutical) UG R A7)
([EHHEREE)
Venturepharm Inc (“VPC Inc”) g227) (TVPC Inc)) - (12) - 6
Hanzhong Venturepharm Pharm EHREEENTHRAR] - 5 - =
Chemical Company Limited
- 629 - 6

Both companies are the subsidiaries of the Company’s
substantial shareholders.

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and

repayable on demand. It is approximate to its fair value.

The maximum balance due from Sinoway Pharmaceutical,
VP Inc and Hanzhong Venturepharm Pharm Chemical
Company Limited for the year ended 31st December 2008
was approximately of RMB636,000, (RMB812,000) and
RMB5,000 respectively.

FRFABRARER/ARBEIERRZHBA
= -

B

BRARESELRMN 28 BAREREE-
FREEEE N FERS

7

BIE+—A=+—8 ' — T N\FHH "
R ESRHERE  E2 nRkERERE
BZLTERAANEASEINAARE
636,000 © (AR#12,000) F1A R #5,000 °
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15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS — GROUP AND THE COMPANY

5. XEMEREE - FAKERKQF

Group Company
A& AR
2008 2007 2008 2007

“EENE “TTLE -FENE “TTLA
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFRE ARETT AR¥TRZ ARMTR

Dual currency investment EEMIS & 11,285 24,363 11,285 24,363
Money market funds BEMIZES - 39,285 - 39,285
Investment funds KRERES 5,959 8,761 5,959 8,761
Bond Ex 3,417 - 3,417 -
Shares e 25,190 = 25,190 =
Investment held for resale AEEeMEE 833 — - -

= 46,684 72,409 45,851 72,409

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
presented within “investing activities” in the cash flow
statement.

The fair value of all investment funds is based on their

current bid prices in an active market.

RHUEMEEEARERERTITINKE
JRENET o

EREES 2 A VFEDREBERNAERMS
ZEANEBAE -
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Bt % | R K

15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS — GROUP AND THE COMPANY

(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in the

following currencies:

BXEUEMEE - FKEEREQT
(&)

At ESREENATIIERE

Group Company
rEE KA
2008 2007 2008 2007

“EENE “TTLF -FENE “TTLA
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFRE ARETT AR¥TR ARMTR

Renminbi AR 833 = - =
HK dollars pit 21,013 = 21,013 -
Swiss Franc A RR - 9,725 - 9,725
US dollars ETT 24,838 62,684 24,838 62,684

46,684 72,409 45,851 72,409

16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — GROUP AND THE

COMPANY

16 RERREEEY —FEBEREKA
7

Group Company
rEE AN/NE
2008 2007 2008 2007

—BEN\E ZTTLF ZBENF ZTTLH
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT AR®TR ARBTE

Cash at banks and on hand RITGERREFRS 4,508 13,622 1,113 12
Short-term bank deposit G HRER 1T 5N 2,203 17,181 2,203 17,181
6,711 30,803 3,316 17,193
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16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — GROUP AND THE
COMPANY (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents included the following for the
purpose of the cash flow statement:

6.RERBSEEY - FEERELD
8 (&)

RehBEcSBEYRRTEXBRATA

?;lg
Group Company
£8 e
2008 2007 2008 2007

—SENEF —TTLF “BENF —TTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFL ARETT ARMTFL ARETE

Cash and cash equivalents HERBEESEEY 6,711 30,803 3,316 17,193
Bank overdrafts (Note 20) RITES (MiFE20) - 3) - 3
6,711 30,800 3,316 17,190

Bank balances and cash were denominated in following

RITERBRIR S U T EREFHE -

currencies:

Group Company

rEE RAF]
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EEN\E —TTLF ZZBENE —_TTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETT AR¥TR ARETR
Renminbi AREE 3,357 12,181 - -
HK dollars ot 43 9,750 43 9,750
Swiss Franc IR BR 2,203 = 2,203 =
US dollars =TT 1,105 8,854 1,067 7,438
Others EAh 3 18 3 5
6,711 30,803 3,316 17,193
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17. SHARE CAPITAL — GROUP AND THE COMPANY

17. B — REERARDQF

Number of Shown in
ordinary the financial
shares Amount statements
ZEREA 8 HEBRRITE
HK$’000 RMB’000
BT T ARBTIT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FREEIIEBTHZER
Authorised: JETE
At 31st December 2007 and HIE—ZEZT+HF
31st December 2008 +TZA=1+—H8K
—ET)N\F
+=—A=+—H 1,000,000,000 100,000 106,000
Issued and fully paid: BRI
At 31st December 2007 BHIF—ZTTLF
+—A=+—H 360,000,000 36,000 38,160
Shares issued for cash proceeds  LAIR & U 2531T 2 IR 1D 2,806,664 281 247
31st December 2008 —EBN\HF
+=ZHB=+—H 362,806,664 36,281 38,407
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17. SHARE CAPITAL — GROUP AND THE COMPANY
(Continued)

A summary of the above movements in issued share capital
of the Company is as follows:

17. B — KEBRAEAQAT (&)

ERARRBBRITRANZESHHEMAT ¢

2008 2007
ZEENF e
Number of Number of
issued issued
ordinary ordinary
shares of shares of
HK$0.01 each HK$0.01each
BREE Par value BREE Par value
B0 T HK$'000 EH0.17TH) HK$'000
EER HE TR EfE
BITRE BT T BATHRER BT T
Beginning of the year 8397 360,000,000 36,000 360,000,000 36,000
Issue of shares pursuant to RAR AR RET T 21T
exercise of share options ZIRE
(Note () (Pif5E()) 577,000 58 — -
Issue of shares, net of expenses BIIRE - {IREBRFE 2,229,664 223 = =
End of the year EEFN 362,806,664 36,281 360,000,000 36,000
Note: MisE

(@) During the year, 577,000 (2007: nil) new shares of HK$0.1 each
were issued upon the exercise of options under the share option
scheme approved by the shareholders of the Company at an
exercise price ranging from HK$0.36 to HK$0.625 (2007: nil) per
share. These shares rank pari passu with the existing shares of the

Company.

The Company has share option schemes as at 31st
December 2008, under which it may grant options to
employees of the Group to subscribe for shares of the
Company. During the year, nil (2007: nil) of these options
lapsed in connection with the cessation of employment of
certain employees and the expiry of exercise period.

(@ ARRREHRESEZ BRETS - FEBRE
A ALERS$0.36/8 T E$0.625/8 7L Z 1 TEBATE

HEBRENRBAARRND

RSy S A K

11577,000 (ZZZ+F : T) REREES0AE T
ZER  ZEHREAQRBBERNER R SR ©

R-ZE

— ==

NEFETZA=+—H  ARAAH

REEABBRERRETAKEZEE A

BARRZED - RFEAR - RE (

— T+

— ==

FE)BRERSTEREREBRLIBAMSE

R o
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17. SHARE CAPITAL — GROUP AND THE COMPANY 17. BEX — ZEEREAT (&)
(Continued)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding RITHEBIRESE R EG@METITEE
and their related weighted average exercise prices are as ZEEFHBWT
follows:

Number of share options

BREHE

At 31st

At 1st December

January Granted Exercised Lapsed 2008

Exercise 2008 during the during during the n+=AH

Date of grant price  Note n—HA—H year the year year =+—H

®iEH TEE MaE  ZEENE AERH REITHE AEFE ZTT)N\F

20th June 2003 HK$0.32 (i) 9,720,000 = = = 9,720,000
ZET=FHA=+H 0.32%87T

20th June 2003 HK$0.40 (ii) 1,800,000 - - - 1,800,000
“EE=FXHTH 0.40% 7T

2nd March 2005 HK$0.52 (iii) 1,892,000 - (65,000) - 1,827,000
—ZTERF=H=H 0.528 7T

14th December 2005 HK$0.45 (iv) 648,000 - (28,800) = 619,200
—ZTRFE+T-A+TMA 0.45/87T

10th August 2006 HK$0.36 (v) 3,168,000 = (251,100) = 2,916,900
—ETREN\ATH 0.36/7T

10th May 2007 HK$0.625 (vi) 6,805,200 - (232,100) - 6,573,100
“ETLFRATH 0.625/& 7T

24,033,200 - (577,000) - 23,456,200
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17. SHARE CAPITAL — GROUP AND THE COMPANY
(Continued)

Notes:

(i)  These options are exercisable at HK$0.32 (RMB0.28) per share in
three trenches: the maximum percentage of options exercisable
within the periods commencing from 1st January 2004 to 31st
December 2004, from 1st January 2005 to 31st December 2005
and after 1st January 2006 are 30%, 60% and 100%, respectively.

(i)  These options are exercisable at HK$0.40 (RMBO0.35) per share in
three trenches: the maximum percentage of options exercisable
within the periods commencing from 1st January 2003 to 31st
December 2003, 1st January 2004 to 31st December 2004 and
after 1st January 2005 are 30%, 60% and 100%, respectively.

(i)  These options are exercisable at HK$0.52 (RMBO0.46) per share: the
share options exercisable within the period commencing from 2nd
March 2005 to 1st March 2015.

(iv) These options are exercisable at HK$0.45 (RMBO0.40) per share: the
share options exercisable within the period commencing from 14th
December 2005 to 13rd December 2015.

(v) These options are exercisable at HK$0.36 (RMB0.32) per share: the
share options exercisable within the period commencing from 10th
August 2006 to 9th August 2016.

(v These options are exercisable at HK$0.625 (RMBO0.55) per share:
the share options exercisable within the period commencing from
10th May 2007 to 9th May 2017.

Options exercised during the year resulted in 577,000
(2007: nil) ordinary shares being issued at HK$0.52
(RMBO0.46), HK$0.45 (RMB0.40), HK$0.36 (RMB0.32) and
HK$0.625 (RMBO0.55), yielding the following proceeds:

17. BRAX - XEBRA QT (&

(i) %Z%B%Hx%wﬂf{ﬁﬁiﬁxsso32;%77:(oza/\E
¥&) » Al = HATTLE ¢ EL??@E A—AZ
TMOE+=—A=+—H "
TERFEF+—A=1+— E&fzgx\i A—BX
% D RIA30% * 60% K 100%.2 A F 1T AR IE A
Dt ERBEA QB °

(i) ZEBBREZTEMEARSRLB T (0.35AKR
ﬁg) A =M IR T =F—F—H&E_
TR+ _f=+—0 —TTWE—F—HBE

—EEMFE+—A=F+—AK=ZZTZTHR—A—BH

% > D BILAB0%  60% K% 100% 2 A TAT{ERERER

At ERREEA QB ©

(i) ZEBREZTEERSRS2E T (0.46A K
) IR RF=-"A-HE-T—hF=A—
A BRI RE AR A AR ©

vy, ZEBREZTEERERLSE T (0.40A K
) AAR—ZEERF+_ATMHAE=_Z—RHF+
ZA+=HHRREAQBKY °

v) ZEBREZTEERERS6E T (0.32AR
) AIRZZEERFNATBE=_Z—X"ENAA
HHfRE A ARG -

(vi) ZEBEREZITEREARSTR625% T (0.55A K
) AIR—ZEELERATAE—T—tERAN
A B RE AR A AR ©

RN TT RS IR #E - AR Z 38 % 37 A%577,000
(ZZEZLF:F) | BITERILETT
(0.46 A B #) > 0.45% 7T (0.40A R #) -
0.36/% 7T (0.32 A R #&) #10.625/% 7t (0.55
ARE)  EEATE

2008 2007
—EENE  CFTLAF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT

Ordinary share capital — at par LB — HmEE 51 -
Share premium gyt 199 -
Proceeds P15 5038 250 =

The related weighted average share price at the time
of exercise was HK$0.49 (RMB0.43) (2007: HK$0.60
(RMBO0.56)) per share.

FRNBETEZBRERITE B2 MEFHRK
B AFNR0.497%8 T (0ABARE) (ZZET+F ¢
0.60/8 7T (0.56 AFRHE)) o
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18. RESERVES — GROUP AND THE COMPANY 18. f&fE — AEBRA LT
Group TEE
Available-
for-sales
Share-  financial Statutory
hased assets enterprise
payment reserve gxpansion Minority

Share  reserve  AIEE  Special  Capital  Statutory fund  Retained interests

capital Rt SBEE  reseve  reseve  reseve  AELE  eamings 2 | Total

UL B GARE EREE iEHE RRES  REER  KRER &t
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR

At 1st January 2007 “5$3+5-P-H 38,160 53 (1,082) 6,039 894 3,808 6,986 64,144 3,089 122,136
Transfer to reserves YN - 2,800 1,082 - 6 - - (3,838) - -
Profit for the year REFHE = = = - - - - 1897 (497 1,100

At 31st December 2007  —EE+4E
and atfst January 2008 +=A=1-A%

“33)\#-A-H 38,160 2,863 - 6,039 900 3,803 6,986 61,903 2,092 123236

Share premium for ERETERNEE

exercise of share option - - - - 199 - - - - 199
New issue of shares HHR 196 = - - = - = = = 196
Issue of new shares ¥k

pursuant fo exercise of  — ERRE(TIE

share options 51 - - - - - - - - 51
Exercise of share option B fRiE(7fE - (87) - - 87 - - - - -

Disposal of investment ~ REE LSRR

in a subsidlary with ERRTLERE

minority shareholders - - - - = = = = (14 (14)
Loss for the year KrEEE = = = = = = - (163%4) (98) (17,312

At 315t December 2008 ZEE)NE
kS 38,407 2,766 - 6,039 1,186 3,803 6,986 45,549 1,620 106,356
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18. RESERVES — GROUP AND THE COMPANY (Continued)

18. i — ZEBRARQF (&)

Company PN
Available-
for-sales
Share- financial
bhased assets
payment reserve
reserve A {EEHE Capital Contribution Retained
BB EMEE reserve surplus earnings Total
e 1] ftE  BERfEE HRER  KREERLK &3t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRT AR%TRH
At 1st January 2007 —EE+E—-H—H 58 (1,032) 894 28,011 (625) 27,301
Transfer to reserves EYNE - 1,032 - - (1,032) -
Loss for the year REERE - - - - (5,681) (5,681)
At 1st January 2008 “TEN\F—A—H 53 - 894 28,011 (7,338) 21,620
Share premium for exercise  F&RRAETTHEA 7 % (B
of share option - - 199 - - 199
Transfer to reserve BARE 2,800 - - - (2,800) -
Profit for the year AREFHE - - - = 35 35
At 31st December 2008 —EENE
+=BA=+—H 2,853 - 1,093 28,011 (10,103) 21,854
Statutory reserve LS

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations applicable

to wholly foreign owned enterprises, the PRC subsidiaries

are required to appropriate to reserve fund an amount of not

less than 10% of the profit after taxation, calculated based

on PRC accounting standards. Should the accumulated

total of this reserve fund reach 50% of the registered

capital of the PRC subsidiaries, the subsidiaries will not be

required to make any further appropriation. Pursuant to

the relevant PRC regulations, this reserve can be used for

making up losses and increase of capital.

REEBETBREBINECENERERZ
RE > ANRRRH B 2 B QR ART
HestRERSEBRTERAT 210%EAEE

BfHEREES

EERBRERENBLRTE

A ANB0% ° fFEwmE 12 R B AR REHE
BRIBIMER -
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18. RESERVES — GROUP AND THE COMPANY (Continued)

Statutory enterprise expansion fund

As stipulated by the relevant PRC laws and regulations, the
subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC shall
appropriate 5% or 10% of its net profit after taxation as the
statutory enterprise expansion fund. The director shall have
discretion in determining the percentage within the range
specified by the relevant PRC laws and regulations.

Special reserve

The special reserve represents the differences between
the nominal value of the shares of VP (BVI), the company
which was the holding company of other members of the
Group prior to the Group Reorganisation, and the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued thereof pursuant to
the Group Reorganisation.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the additional contributions
made by the shareholders of the Company prior to the
listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange
and the additional contributions made by the minority
shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company during the
year.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the net assets of the subsidiaries and
the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange thereof pursuant to the Group Reorganisation.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its
shareholders comprise share premium, capital reserve,
contributed surplus and accumulated (loss)/profit which
in aggregate amounted to RMB21,854,000 (2007:
RMB21,620,000). In accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association, dividends shall be payable out of
the profit or other reserves, including the share premium
account, of the Company and, under the Companies Law
(2002 Revision) of the Cayman Islands, the Company must
be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business immediately following the distribution
of dividend.

18. i — ZEBRARQF (&)

EELEBRRES

REBETBIEPI AR ZERE  ARAFR
BRI 2 BB A BB A EBR IR AR 2 5%
HI0REANLZELRERES - EFARE
B R BUAD FORR AR E < S B IS E
EBAL -

BHES

BhlEERIEVPBV) (REBSEARNAKE
Hibp B R A ZER DR RO EERAR
ARBEASESEMETZRNEERE H
LA

N

BARMEREAR R BERNAN R AR 5
R EWRIFTIE 2 BRINEE - LA R A
BRRLBBRRREAMERINIE ©

BRAER

ARBIZEBBHEENBARZEEFRE
RARBRBEAEBEBETUERIR 2R
MEEMERIER

RAalrl ok T IRE 2 #EE2ERD S
B - BEARFE BEEEERR (B8) &
A A £ AR B21,854,000C (Z 2T+
£ AR #¥21,620,0007T) ° BIEARRQ RA
BER BN ZBRBEBARRDRNGFHEA
REREL (BRERMDEER) o b - BRI
HAEHEZRRE (ZEZEZFEFIR) * &
RAVAEEZRERE 2% e AE
FHEHPEEEER -
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19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

19. ENEZRAREA BN

Group Company
REE RAF]
2008 2007 2008 2007

—BFN\F —TTLF ZBENF —TTLH
RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
AREBTR ARBTT AR®TR ARETT

Trade payables ENE SR - 285 - -
Other payables H AR 6,766 4,405 3,215 -
Accrued expenses FETEREX 1,395 832 500 114

8,161 5,522 3,715 114

The Group receives an average credit period of 90 days
from its trade suppliers. At 31st December 2008, the
ageing analyses of trade payables of the Group were as

AEBERHERERSFHOXRMER MK
B RZEENF+_A=+—8B ~5E
ENEZRANREDHAOT

follows:
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AREET T
Within 90 days 90 AN - 17
91-180 days 91-180k - -
181-365 days 181-365K - -
Over 365 days HBiE365K - 268
- 285

The carrying amounts of trade payables and other payables
approximate their fair values.

ENEZEAMEMEN KA REERER
NHERE °
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20. BORROWINGS 20. f& K
Group Company
AEE KA F]
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF —TELF ZEBENF —_FTTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT AR®TR ARETET
Non-current FEFRE
Convertible bonds AR E & 65,785 95,936 65,785 95,936
Current ED
Bank overdrafts IRITHEZ - 3 - 3
Total borrowings B 65,785 95,939 65,785 95,939
The bank overdrafts were repayable within 1 year. The R-ZEBEENF+-_A=+—8  BITELN

carrying amount of the bank overdrafts approximates their

fair value.

The effective interest rate at the balance sheet date was

as follows:

BEABRBAERNEIDT

FHRIFER - HREAERE QI FERS -

Group Company
rEE N
2008 2007 2008 2007
“E2ENGFE —_TTtHF ZBENFE —_TTLF
Bank overdrafts RITEX 0% 6.57% 0% 6.57%
Convertible bonds AR B 3.5% 3.5% 3.5% 3.5%

At 31st December 2008, the carrying amounts and fair value
of the non-current convertible bonds for the Group and the
Company amounted approximately of RMB65,785,000 and
RMB65,785,000 respectively. (2007: RMB95,936,000 and

RMB95,936,000)

R-ZFEENFEF+_A=+—H8 A&£EEFM
N EH)FE R B) AT ERE 5 H) BR E (E A
~NTFEED R B AR 657850008 A
R ¥65,785,000 (ZEZTE L HF: ARK

95,936,000F1 A X #95,936,000)
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20. BORROWINGS (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

20. fE3K (&)

REEMAR T K EREREE L T B
5

Group and the Company

AEMRAAT
2008 2007
—EENE  CFTLHF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

HK dollars T - -
Swiss Francs ImEBR 65,785 95,936
Other currencies H B - 3

65,785 95,939

Convertible bonds

On 10th September 2007, Venturepharm Laboratories
Limited, issued bonds of an aggregate principal amount of
CHF 15,000,000 (the “Bonds”). Unless previously redeemed,
repurchased and cancelled or converted, any outstanding
Convertible Notes shall be redeemed at the Redemption
Amount on the date falling on the fifth anniversary of the
date of issue of the Convertible Notes.

The Noteholders will have the right to convert, at the
Conversion Price, the whole of the principal amount of the
Convertible Notes into Shares at any time and from time to
time, from the date of issue of the Convertible Notes.

AR E S

REZZZLFNA+TH BE2REEXER
A R)ETA S 458 515,000,0005 £IEBR 2
&% ([&F]) - RIFLAIE THER - BE X
FEEH SR EEIR AR AR AR R 2 BT
AEERARAFE A AERD S REE R ERAE
B2 UHRRER -

REFAAR A URRERETAHETMA
RiR R TERBRERERERERKEE
A BB REERAARLD o
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20. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

Noteholders may at any time during the period on or after
the date of issue of the Convertible Notes and prior to the
close of business on the Maturity Date or (j) if the Company
shall have exercised its rights to redeem the Convertible
Notes (Tax Redemption or Early Redemption), then up to
the fifth business day preceding the date fixed for such
redemption, (i) if the Company shall be in breach of its
obligations under the terms of the Convertible Notes (Event
of Default), then up to the time when the Convertible Notes
become due and repayable to convert, at the Conversion
Price, the whole or any part of the Convertible Notes held
by the Noteholders into Conversion Shares.

The Company shall be entitled at any time while the
Convertible Notes are outstanding to redeem all outstanding
Convertible Notes at the Redemption Amount provided that
the closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange for
a period of 30 consecutive trading days is at least 130%
of the then applicable Conversion Price on each such
trading day.

20. fE3K (&)

MRRES ()

SEFAANEAIRRZEBRZRTARIZEK
YHEINHELERERNOMEA 2 EME
A () E A RITEER AT AR REE (R
BEXREFRERD) 2&8  MERESAED
ZBRMNERBEELER  (EQXRRRER
AMBRRIEHEFRE TOEE CBOEMH) - Al
BRRABRRRIHAGER - RBRER
KRBA APRA N2 B SRR Al
R RE AR AR o

HEBMIFTEE=TERX S A Z ki WRE
ELRESEMEZR S BERERZBR

~

A E S

Convertible bonds

DR
[E&#9130% - AR AERETRRER MK
BORE - BREHRIE D S B O A RS AR
BT I 11 85 A T SRR -

2008 2007
—SENFE  STTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTR  ARETE
65,785 95,936

Interest expense of approximately RMB3,991,000 (2007:
1,040,000) has been recognised in the income statement
in respect of the convertible bonds for the year ended 31st
December 2008.

BHE-_ZENE+-_A=1t—"BILLEE "
A A R #3,991,0007T (= T T + ¢
1,040,0007T) B A] # AR B 5 F) 8 B AR iz
KR -
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21. DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation is calculated in full

on temporary

differences under the liability method using the applicable

taxation rates prevailing in the countries/places in which

the Group operates.

21, EIER R

BT KRR AN EE KL e ATE R 2
RNEREESERERRBEINRGE

Details of deferred taxation are as follows: BEEFE BT ¢
Group
55
2008 2007
—EENEF —E2ELF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBEFIT
Deferred tax assets: FEIEFE N E E
— Deferred tax asset to be recovered  — += A LA FEIEAELER REE
after more than 12 months 5,753 -
— Deferred tax asset to be —+Z Az ARE R RER K EE
recovered within 12 months 2,375 -
8,128 -

No deferred taxation was charged to equity during the year

(2007: Nil).

The movements in deferred tax assets during the year are

as follows:

Provisions
BB

2008

RMB’000

2007

RMB’000

AFEERERTOTRERS (CFTLF:
&) -

AERRBEHRAEELSWT ¢

Tax loss Total

HIEEE &t
2008 2007 2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRE ARBTT ARBTR ARBTT AR®TRT ARBTT

At 1st January R—H—H - = - = - —
Credited to the EiEmK
income statement 5,753 - 2,375 - 8,128 -
Rn+=A
At 31st December == 5,753 — 2,375 — 8,128
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21,

22.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognized for tax loss
carry-forwards to the extent that the realization of the
related tax benefit through the future taxable profits is
probable. The tax losses do not expire under current tax

legislation.

There was no material unprovided deferred tax as at 31st

21.

EEBRK (&)
B 3R A B A R DAL R L B b 1 2 R

IEENE  THRIERELHKEE - RIE
BATHUE - HBBRT B

RZZENF+_A=+—H BEEAKRE

December 2008 (2007: Nil). BELERR (ZZT+F - |) -
OTHER INCOME 22, H A
2008 2007
—EEN\F —TETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETTT
Gain on foreign exchange BE 5 B2 - 146
Government subsidy BT & B 197 598
Financial assets at fair value through RS EMEE
profit or loss
— fair value losses — AFEEK (23,461) -
— fair value gains — RN EREN 913 163
Dividend income A A A 214 -
Business tax return TR 8 205 -
Gain on revaluation of corporate bond NRIEFEHRKE 30,404 -
Others EAb 305 -
Profit on security dealing BHR Z W 3,538 -
12,315 907

During the year, the Group received RMB197,000 of
government subsidy (2007: RMB598,000) towards the
research and development projects.

REEAEBESERMZEEENBFE
B ARM197000 (22 +F: AR
598,000) °
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23. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

23. FIBR WA R B HEH

2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
Interest expense: FMEER
- Bank charges —RITEMA (53) (325)
— Exchange loss —EREK (3,687) (3,376)
— Interest on margin financing —RESEBEER (237)
— Convertible bond interest — AR ESFE (3,397) (697)
— Convertible bond expenses — AR ESFEA (594) (1,040)
Finance costs B%EA (7,968) (5,338)
Finance income A EHBA
— Interest income from — R HRIR 1T 17 SR BULA
short term bank deposits 573 574
— Interest income from convertible bonds ~ — A& (&5 F 8K A - 952
Finance income B YA 573 1,526
Net finance costs FETTSE (7,395) (3,812)
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24. EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales and administrative

expenses are analysed as follows:

24, EFAME

HEKAREBERSTAT :

2008 2007

—EEN\F ZTTLF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARETTT

Cost of material consumed R EHEFRER AR 12,098 6,092

Depreciation e 2,747 1,769
Amortisation of new drugs technology B IR & FE A T R g R B g

including in administrative expenses 1,741 1,149

Auditors’ remuneration EirER 624 633

Employee benefit expenses (Note 25) EBERFAER (M:E25) 18,725 19,874

Operating lease payment LEHEE A 2,256 2,530

Loss on disposal of property plant HEWE  RENMERL

and equipment 282 =

Loss on disposal of associate HEHE A RIEK - 935

Provision for doubtful debt EIR%EE 19,492 -

Impairment loss of intangible assets EEERERK 7,465 -
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B &

25. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 25 EERANER

2008 2007
—BENE  -TTtHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T
Wages and salaries TERGS 17,903 19,088
Retirement benefits scheme contributions iR {K3EFIET 24 2% 822 862
Lapse of share based options FEARE RN - (76)
18,725 19,874

(a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments () ESREREEEMS

Employee
Salaries Provident share-based
Dirgctor's fee and bonus fund contribution payment Total
EShe HERAA MRS BERRAH &t

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
CEENF CTErE ZEENE CETtE ZERNE ZETtE CBENE -TRtE ZEENE  CETtE
RMB’000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARMTR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETR
Wiliam, Xia GUO J8 - - 479 480 - - - - 479 480
Maria, SuMui SONG ~ REZi§ - - an 221 14 12 159 - 546 233
FENG Tao i - - - - - - - - - -
Wu Xin R - - - - - - - - - -
Nathan Xin ZHANG IR - - - - - - - - - -
WU Ming Yu REER) k] 30 - - - - - - 30 30
Paul CONTOMICHALOS  Paul CONTOMICHALOS - = - = - = - = - =
WANG Hong Bo 2 - - - - - - - - - -
30 30 852 701 14 12 159 - 1,055 743
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt % R MO

25. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individual
The five individuals whose emoluments were the

highest in the Group for the year included two (2007:
two) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the

25. BRERANER ()
(b) EHRBREHFMAL
AEABRBHFMALTEERE (Z2T+

F WA ARAREE © FIFHMaTE
BEMotm - EBR=%2(ZFZLF: =

analysis presented above. The emoluments payable of H) ZMESHT
the remaining three (2007: three) individuals during the
year are as follows:
2008 2007
—EEN\F ZTTAEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AR®ETTT
Salaries and allowances e MoERh 1,360 816
Employee share-based payment 8 TR 269 -
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3R 4@ A5+ 21 it 3% 43 25
1,672 841

The emoluments of each of the five highest paid
employees are less than HKD1,000,000.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any directors of the Company or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office. None of the directors has waived any

emoluments in the year.

hEsRFMHEREZHMEH PR
1,000,000 7T °

REEA AREBEANARRESFTL
TERSFMALINEMAMES - (E5
MAREMARE B 2 ZE) - HER
BERERE MESTHMERFANEL
B -



VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED  Annual Report 2008

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt % R MO

26. INCOME TAX 26. FTEH
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as ARAEBERAFE NI EEBBEEEM
the Group had no estimated assessable profit generated FERBim Al - Bl 5L BB F S AEH B
in Hong Kong for the year (2007: Nil). o (ZETLF  |)
PRC enterprise income tax has been calculated on the FR (R PRSI D AR IR R B A B A R S AR
estimated assessable profit for the year according to the FTE o

relevant laws and regulations.

Beijing Dezhong-Venture Pharmaceutical Technology NN A B A AL R RS 2 Y B i R &
Development Co., Ltd. (“Dezhong VP”) and Beijing New ERAAR ([BREZ ] NI REREL B &
Dezhong-Venture Pharmaceutical Technology Development BEARAR ([(B2EERH ) HRE AN
Co., Ltd. (“New Dezhong VP”), subsidiaries of the Company, BRFEMERHRAEZE - PITPBICERER
qualify as foreign investment industrial and high technology % BINVARIF E BB 1% FDE LA15%8 K5t
enterprises and are subject to PRC enterprise income tax BEMPTISH -

at a rate of 15 per cent on its income after offsetting prior

year’s losses.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income malmRPHRERAT
statement represents:

2008 2007
—BENF TR tE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

PRC enterprise income tax AR FTIS T
— current year —KEE 2,129 788
— over-provision in prior years — LRI FERE RS (3,931) -
Deferred taxation (Note 21) ERERE R (FzE21) (8,128) -

(9,930) 788
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % o oR KO

26. INCOME TAX (Continued) 26. FRIH (&)

The taxation on the Group’s (loss)/profit before taxation AFRRIADE (B518) AEM - AEKBFEHHE
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using AR BBEEMEMESE 2 EmiE L

PRC enterprise income tax rate as follows: ERIZAS :
2008 2007
—EEN\F e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
(Loss)/profit before taxation ATFE,(EE) (27,242) 1,888
Calculated at a taxation rate of 15% (2007: 15%) LA15%8 =5+ % (2007: 15%) (4,086) 283
Different taxation rates H A F R AT (1,668) 18
Income not subject to taxation DR EON (245) (122)

Preferential tax rate in respect of tax holiday BB A R= R UOR %

enjoyed by the PRC subsidiaries ZBEREREH - (822)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes T~ 823%30 & - 1,073
Unrecognised timing differences RERERMEER - 358
Qver-provision in prior years AR E BE B (3,931) _
Taxation U E A (9,930) 788
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt % | R K

26. INCOME TAX (Continued)

27.

The National People’s Congress approved the Corporate
Income Tax Law of the PRC (the new “CIT Law”) on 16th
March 2007 and the State Council announced the Detall
Implementation Regulations (“DIR”) on 6th December 2007,
which was effective from 1st January 2008. According to
the new CIT Law, the income tax rates for both domestic
and foreign investment enterprises will be unified at 25%
effective from 1st January 2008. However, for enterprises
which were established before the publication of the new
CIT Law and were entitled to preferential treatments of
reduced CIT tax rate granted by relevant tax authorities,
the new CIT rate may be gradually increased to 25% within
5 years after the effective date of the new CIT Law. For
the region that enjoys a reduced CIT rate at 15%, the new
CIT rate will gradually increase to 18% for 2008, 20% for
2009, 22% for 2010, 24% for 2011 and 25% for 2012
according to grandfathering rules stipulated in the DIR
and related circular. Enterprises that are currently entitled
to exemptions or reductions from the standard income tax
rate for a fixed term may continue to enjoy such treatment
until the fixed term expires.

(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

The (loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company is dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company to the extent of approximately RMB16,354,000
(2007: RMB1,597,000).

26. FRE% (42)

27.

FREARKEAGR -_ZEZLFE=A+,<H
P E AR LMBIA (R EMETE) G
(EEMBRNE))  BBRR =T LF+=
ANBEM T CEEMBREBEMEA) -
N EMGREZEEBEIN=ZSZENFE—
A—BHBRER - BRI CEMSHERE -
NERFEEINECEMEBREIBFUR =T
NE—A—BRHE—AE25% @ HRIBIER
AT MR EEERE RN EZZE
BERBERNEE - RASHEEGIRE -
MR ERELSENREER B RAFEAER LR
5 RIEENE . _EBEEHE - _E-F
F ZF—— ZFE-—Z_"FHplEHA15%
18% * 20% ~ 22% * 24% * 25%H) Fi & - B

AEEREMNERBHREEZY  BEEEE
Him o
AAFEERFEABLENESR

ERRRMBEHREF  ARAERFEEA
FEMR B E5 18 & A R 16,354,000 (—EZ +
F B ARKA,597,000) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt % | R K

28. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share

Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the (loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue during the year.

28. ZRER (FE)

(a) BREAERF (FE)

EFLRBEE -

FRERRRN (BR) NFETIHASE
B AR DR AR R GRS (E
1B) RAARFEARRFD BT E BN

2008 2007
—gENF  —TTtE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥EFTT
(Loss)/profit attributable to ZIN/NEIE S S
equity holders of the Company FE(RER (E538) (16,354) 1,697
Weighted average number B BT AR it T AR 2
of ordinary shares ('000R%)
in issue (thousands) 361,735 360,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % o oR KO

28. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 28. BREBF (BR) (&
(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (b) BEREERF

The calculation of the diluted (loss)/earnings per share BRBESRF (BB HHAEDHE
for the year is based on the (loss)/profit attributable R EF A AN A A)E i AR AR R E L s )
to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company for (&5 18) 49RMB16,354,000 (= T & +
the year of approximately RMB16,354,000 (2007: & : RMB1,597,000) K & i@ % fn
RMB1,597,000) and the weighted average number of 5 % #441,402,000 (= T F + £
441,402,000 (2007: 381,405,000) ordinary shares after 381,405,000) % ' EFBHNRITFEE
adjusting for the effect of the dilutive potential ordinary AR E (FF R T XMizE28) THEE
shares to be issued to the exercise of the options R EM S TETHET BT L AR
granted under all relevant Share Option Schemes 79,667,000 (ZZEZ 4 : 21,405,000)
as detailed in note 28 below of 79,667,000 (2007: BREOFEELTE  FENAT

21,405,000) shares, calculated as follows:

2008 2007
—SBN\E T
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARBTTT

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity KA R EFERARE
holders of the Company PR F(E518) (16,354) 1,597

Weighted average number of ordinary @A I0#E 15 I8 &

shares in issue (thousands) ("000F%) 361,735 360,000
Adjustment for: FHEE -
— Effect of deemed issue of ordinary  1BiE RN =S AR ST 2198 /E
shares under the Company’s BITEBREZE (C000/%)
Share option schemes (thousands) 79,667 21,405

Weighted average number of ordinary it & Gk E R 2 @Ak
shares for diluted earnings per TR (000/%)
share (thousands) 441,402 381,405
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % o oR KO

29. CASH USED IN OPERATIONS 29 RETHELECZCRERE
2008 2007
—BENF —TT
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETTT

(Loss)/profit before income tax FATFE,(EE) (27,242) 1,888
Adjustment for EEES
— Depreciation (Note 6) — & (Hizk6) 2,329 1,769
— Amortisation (Note 7) — H8H (fIsE7) 1,741 1,149
— Fair values loss on convertible bond — RKREHFRATFEBELX (30,404) -
— Allowance for work in progress (Note 11) — ERGEE (MIsE11) - (714)
- Exchange gain — R B 253 23
— Loss on disposal of associate — HEBERREL - 935
— Impairment of investment —RERE - 167
— Impairment of intangible asset — B EERE 7,465 -
— Provision on accounts receivable — FEUER R B 19,492 -
— Gain on disposal of property, —BEWMEHE  BEMEERE
plant and machines 405 =
— Finance cost — net —UBER - FE 2,882 (1,526)
— Fair value losses/(gains) on other financial — X5 &@mEAEA T BE
assets at fair value through profit or EEER
loss 19,019 (163)
— Dividend income from financial assets — Rt EERERA
at fair value through profit or loss (214) -
— Share-based payment expenses — RN ER - (76)
Changes in working capital LEESEE) (4,274) 3,452
— Work in progress — M (2,476) (19,569)
— Trade receivables — EIE F R (1,985) (12,698)
— Prepayments, deposits and —BRER Bk
other receivables o Ath FE YK 406 (17,018)
— Amount due (to)/from related companies — FEY (1) BB~ R F0A 629 667
— Trade and other payables — ENE SRR R EMER K 2,639 3,974
— Receipt in advance — TRURER K (19,829) 18,700
— Dividend payable — BRI T AT - (54)
Cash used in operations LETEBEE 2SR (24,890) (22,546)

132



VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED  Annual Report 2008

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of machinery, land and buildings

which fall due as follows:

30.

RERNAE

WEER AEEREEHEKS LRIz
5 40 7R AT B A A TR R 7 R R BB A S
mF

2008 2007

—EENE —ETLF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARET T

No later than 1 year —F R 2,188 2,582
Later than 1 year an no later than 5 years —%E B REUR 6,528 8,535
Later than 5 years BilEAF 1,954 4,602
10,670 15,719

31. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Key personnel management:

Remuneration for key personnel management, including
amount paid to the Company’s directors and certain of
the highest paid employee, as disclosed in note 25 is as

follows:

31.

BB S

X

[

BEEEFEA

\

NGEEEZERABBANGHY 2B NEA
AIEEMNE TSHAERRM - (KA FHE
ZEBBEANT 2 EHFRHE25) FFIBL0
T

2008 2007

—EENE —TTHF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBFIT

Salaries and allowances HetEA 1,360 816
Share - based payment expenses BHZHER 269 -
Retirement benefits scheme contributions iR (k4 {2k 43 =
1,672 816
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T FE B BESE

Year ended 31st December

BIt+—A=+—H
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
—ZTNF —ETTRFE Z—ITTRF —TTtF ZBENE
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBTT ARETT ARETT AR¥TR
Turnover 5 36,157 42 157 57,052 38,729 39,186
(Loss)/profit before taxation Biana#l / (&8) 11,480 6,403 18,773 1,888 (27,242)
Taxation He (881) (887) (3,175) (788) 9,930
(Loss)/profit after taxation before B Fi 4B RET D ERR B
minority interests SRR (E518) 10,599 5,516 15,598 1,100 (17,312)
Minority interests DER R R 84 128 (35) 497 958
(Loss)/profit for the year after MRV REREZ
minority interest NEZHF (EE) 10,683 5,644 15,563 1,597 (16,354)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Year ended 31st December
BIt+—A=+—H
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
“TTNF —ETTRFE —TTRF —TTtF ZBEN\E
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AR¥TR
Total assets less current liabilites #&EE R A E 102,135 106,398 122,136 219,172 172,141
Non current liabilities FRBEaE
Corporate bonds payable R ARES - - - (95,936) (65,785)
Minority interests DR R (3,190) (3,054) (3,089) (2,592) (1,620)
Shareholders’ funds BHERES 98,945 103,344 119,047 120,644 104,736
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

FHMBHE

Notes to the financial summary:

The results for each for the five years ended 31st December 2008 have
been prepared on a combined basis to indicate the results of the Group as
if the Group structure, at the time when the Company’s shares were listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, had been in existence throughout the years concerned. The results
for each of the four years ended 31st December 2004, 2005, 2006 and
2007 have been extracted from the corresponding audited annual financial

statements.

This financial summary indicates the consolidated results of the Company
and its subsidiaries with effect from 1st January 2004 or since their
respective dates of incorporation or acquisition, whichever is a shorter
period. The consolidation balance sheets at 31st December 2004, 2005,
2006, 2007 and 2008 are the combination of the balance sheets of the
Company and its subsidiaries at 31st December 2004, 2005, 2006, 2007
and 2008. In the opinion of the directors, the resulting consolidated financial
statements give a more meaningful view of the results and state of affairs
of the Group as a whole.

BT REZ MYAE

HE-ZZT)/\F+-_A=1t—HLAAFESFZEED
RREMELERR  UWBTRAKRE 2 EBRARARNE
ERBMERGMAERARBIER LTRE —BEFE - &F
ZET=F ZEENF ZEERFRCETRF
A=+—RItMEFESF 2 RETRFHEEAHEZKEZ
FEPBHRE -

AU BBERTAAAREMNBARE —STHF—A—
Bl k5 8k sk iiiE B 8 (AR B # A %) A
R BEBE R_TT=F . _TTNE .  _TTH
FZZTRF - ZEEER T NEFEFZA=1+—H

TNF+_A=Z+—HAZEERBERZGH -EFRR -
BHRZEEVBHRRE FHERARE 2 XE K EER

°

%
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